
County Offices
Newland

Lincoln
LN1 1YL

7 July 2016

Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee

A meeting of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee will be held on 
Friday, 15 July 2016 at 10.00 am in Committee Room One, County Offices, 
Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL for the transaction of the business set out on the attached 
Agenda. 

Yours sincerely

Tony McArdle
Chief Executive

Membership of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 
(17 Members of the Council and 4 Added Members)

Councillors J D Hough (Chairman), R Wootten (Vice-Chairman), B Adams, W J Aron, 
Mrs J Brockway, S R Dodds, A G Hagues, B W Keimach, Ms T Keywood-Wainwright, 
C R Oxby, Mrs H N J Powell, Mrs S Ransome, Mrs L A Rollings, Mrs N J Smith, 
S M Tweedale, L Wootten and Mrs S M Wray

Added Members

Church Representatives: Mr S C Rudman and Mr P Thompson

Parent Governor Representatives: Mrs P J Barnett and Dr E van der Zee

Public Document Pack





CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AGENDA
FRIDAY, 15 JULY 2016

Item Title Pages

1 Apologies for Absence / Replacement Members 

2 Declaration of Members Interests 

3 Minutes of the meeting held on 27 May 2016 5 - 18

4 National Dispersal of Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking 
Children 
(To receive a report which invites the Committee to consider the 
proposal for the Council to enter into a voluntary arrangement 
relating to the dispersal of unaccompanied asylum seeking 
children across the country prior to consideration by the 
Executive)

To Follow

5 Developing a model for the charging of LCC services to 
schools 
(To receive a report which informs the Children and Young 
People Scrutiny Committee of the development of a common 
approach to the recovery of costs where schools, academies and 
other education organisations in Lincolnshire access services 
delivered by Lincolnshire County Council (LCC))

19 - 38

6 Corporate Parenting Panel Update 
(To receive a report which updates the Committee on the work of 
the Corporate Parenting Panel)

39 - 52

7 Early Years Services Model and Commissioning Plan and 
Contractual Arrangements for Children's Health Services 
(To receive a report which invites the Committee to consider a 
report on the Early Years' Service Model and Commissioning 
Plan and Contractual Arrangements for Children's Health 
Services which is due to be considered by the Executive 
Councillor responsible for Children's Services on 29 July 2016)

53 - 96

8 Lincolnshire Safeguarding Boards Scrutiny Sub-Group - 
Update 
(To receive a report which enables the Committee to have an 
overview of the activities of the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Boards 
Scrutiny Sub-Group, in particular the Sub-Group's consideration 
of child safeguarding matters)

97 - 104

9 Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee Work 
Programme 
(To receive a report which enables the Children and Young 
People Scrutiny Committee to consider its own work programme 
for the coming year)

105 - 112



Democratic Services Officer Contact Details 

Name: Rachel Wilson

Direct Dial 01522 552107

E Mail Address rachel.wilson@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Please note:  for more information about any of the following please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting

 Business of the meeting
 Any special arrangements
 Copies of reports

Contact details set out above.

All papers for council meetings are available on: 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords


1

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

27 MAY 2016

PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR J D HOUGH (CHAIRMAN)

Councillors R Wootten (Vice-Chairman), W J Aron, Mrs J Brockway, S R Dodds, 
A G Hagues, B W Keimach, Ms T Keywood-Wainwright, Mrs S Ransome, 
Mrs L A Rollings, Mrs N J Smith, S M Tweedale, L Wootten and Mrs S M Wray

Councillors Mrs P A Bradwell (Deputy Leader of the Council) and M A Whittington 
attended the meeting as observers

Officers in attendance:-

Debbie Barnes (Executive Director of Children's Services), Stuart Carlton (Assistant 
Director Children's Lead Early Help), Tracy Johnson (Senior Scrutiny Officer), Teri 
Marshall (Principal Transport Officer - Review and Local Bus), Andrew McLean 
(Service Manager Commissioning), Heather Sandy (Chief Commissioning Officer for 
Learning), Sally Savage (Chief Commissioning Officer), Jasmine Sodhi (Performance 
and Equalities Manager), Michelle White ( SEND Team Manager) and Rachel Wilson 
(Democratic Services Officer)

1    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE / REPLACEMENT MEMBERS

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors B Adams and C R Oxby and 
Added Members Mr P Thompson and Dr E van der Zee.

2    DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest at this point in the meeting.

3    MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 15 APRIL 2016

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting held on 15 April 2016 be signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record.

4    POST 16 TRANSPORT POLICY STATEMENT

The Committee was invited to consider a report on the Post 16 Transport Policy 
Statement which was due to be considered by the Deputy Leader of the Council on 1 
June 2016.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
27 MAY 2016

The Committee was advised that the Council provided subsidised transport for 
learners of sixth form age (extended to age 21 or 25 for learners with Learning 
Difficulties or Disabilities (LDDs)) to a school sixth form, college of further education 
or other approved setting.  The cost to the authority of providing this transport was 
over £2.8m per year (2015/16 forecast), and the authority recovered a proportion of 
the cost through the charge to parents or students, which is currently £418 per 
annum (£423 per annum if paid in instalments).

Transport was provided as the Council had a duty to "ensure access" to further 
education and training opportunities (DFE Guidance on Post 16 Transport to 
Education and Training, February 2014).

The report considered by the Committee set out the Council's proposed Post 16 
Transport Policy Statement as required by section 509AA of the Education Act 1996.  
The statement continued the provision of previous years, but included an increase in 
the charge for Post 16 Transport to £500 from September 2016 to July 2017 and 
£570 from September 2017 to July 2018.  It was noted that the proposed charge was 
subject to a survey consultation carried out between 22 February and 19 March 
2016.

Members were provided with the opportunity to ask questions to the officers present 
in relation to the information contained within the report and some of the points raised 
during discussion included the following:

 Concerns were raised regarding families who were in financial difficulty, as the 
charge had increased by 20% but it was thought it was unlikely that bursaries 
given to schools would have increased by a similar amount.

 There was a suggestion that schools and colleges that received bursaries 
would need to shift their priorities to help those families which struggled to pay 
for transport.

 There were also concerns regarding those families who may be on middle 
incomes, but had more than one child to support.

 It was queried whether there was any analysis of how schools used their 
bursaries, and what the take up rate was.  However, members were advised 
that this information was not freely available, but it was for the school or 
college to decide how to use the bursaries.  It was also noted that schools and 
colleges were required to display what assistance was available on their 
website.

 It was commented that a lot of the funding that used to come to the county 
council, now went straight to the schools and colleges.

 In a recent spending priorities consultation which was carried out by the 
County Council, spending on Post 16 transport was not identified as a priority 
by the majority of respondents, however, it was commented that it would be a 
priority for those families with children in post 16 education.

 It was commented that the Council was now in a position where it was starting 
to cut essential services, and it was acknowledged that the increase in the 
charge for post 16 transport would be a problem for some families, but the 
authority should work with the schools and colleges and encourage them to 
use their bursaries to help these students to access post 16 education.  When 

Page 6



3
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

27 MAY 2016

considering the bigger picture, it was suggested that the increase in charge 
had to be supported.

 It was clarified that the charge only allowed for transport provision to school 
and colleges during term time.  If students wished to attend during school 
holidays they would be required to make their own arrangements for transport.  

 For those families who were partially on benefits, members were advised that 
there was a hardship scheme, and if evidence could be produced, the three 
instalments could be broken down into a further 3 payments, meaning that it 
could be paid for in 6 instalments.  It was noted that officers were working with 
Agresso to implement a direct debit scheme which would mean it could be 
broken down into 10 monthly payments.

 An issue was raised regarding the free transport being to the nearest school or 
college, and it was suggested that as provision was now so much wider, it was 
unlikely that the nearest school or college would provide the right course.  
Members were advised that opening up the policy to allow for this would have 
a cost implication. It was also suggested that students not being able to 
access the right course was a significant factor in drop-out rates at post 16 
level.

 Members were reminded that during the budget setting process, if they did not 
want to make savings in this area by increasing the charge for post 16 
transport, there would be a need to take money from somewhere else in the 
Children's Services budget.  None of the decisions which needed to be taken 
were easy, but the Council was now in a difficult position.  The aim was to 
provide an acceptable and reasonable service for the people of Lincolnshire 
with the funding which was available.

 The drop-out rate at age 17 was a key issue, and one of the concerns around 
this was whether the careers advice provided in schools was signposting 
children to the most appropriate course. 

 It was queried how many children would be affected by this increase in charge 
and whether there was any indication of a likely increase in the drop-out rate.  
Members were advised that an impact assessment was included with the 
report which focused on the authority's statutory duty.  It would be very difficult 
to know what the wider impact would be.  However, officers were able to 
monitor the take up by SEN.  It was noted that take up by SEN remained high 
and officers would continue to measure the impact on those pupils with 
disabilities.  It was also reported that NEET figures were monitored and 
strategies could be put in place to address and increase.

 It was commented that the survey consultation had shown overwhelming 
opposition to the increase in charge, and it was queried whether this had been 
taken into account.  Members were advised that these responses had helped 
to inform the EIA, and helped officers to understand the potential impact it 
could have some on some families.  However, it was noted that the increased 
charge was still very competitive when compared to a commercial rate, and 
Lincolnshire was ranked in the middle when compared to other authorities with 
a charging structure.

 It was clarified that young people were not required to stay on at school until 
the age of 18, as participation in apprenticeship schemes would also be 

Page 7



4
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
27 MAY 2016

recognised, and it was queried whether the government had been asked to 
address the disparity in relation to funding for transport. 

 It was requested that officers write to government on behalf of the Committee 
to highlight the issue of funding for post 16 transport.

RESOLVED

1. That the Committee supports the recommendations to the Deputy Leader of 
the Council, as set out in the report.

2. That the comments detailed above be passed to the Deputy Leader of the 
Council.

3. That officers write to government on behalf of the Committee to highlight the 
need for additional support for post 16 transport.

5    FUTURE PROVISION OF SPECIALIST SPEECH AND LANGUAGE 
THERAPY SERVICES INTO PRIMARY SCHOOLS

The Committee was invited to consider a report which set out a proposal to change 
the way in which speech and language therapy services were delivered within school 
settings in Lincolnshire.  Members were advised that the proposal would see the 
closure of three dedicated speech and language units located at Fosse Way primary, 
Lincoln; Monkshouse Primary, Spalding; and Mablethorpe Primary, Mablethorpe.

It was reported that for children at primary age, the authority currently commissioned 
the above schools to provide at a single location the educational and therapeutic 
support to children with complex speech and language difficulties.  There were 23 
children at these schools who received intensive speech and language therapy and 
educational support services.

Members were advised that the alternative model would be 'needs led' and individual 
children would be taken through the assessment process for an Education Health 
and Care Plan (ECHP).  It was proposed that Speech and Language Therapists, 
together with Specialist Teachers (for Speech and Language) would assess the 
needs of children and then work with the local mainstream primary school to 
implement strategies and support packages to aid their development.

The Committee was provided with the opportunity to ask questions to the officers 
present in relation to the information contained within the report and some of the 
points raised during discussion included the following:

 Members were advised that as the number of children affected by these 
proposals was so small, officers had been able to engage with families on an 
individual level.  Some families indicated that they wished their children to stay 
at the school they were on roll at whilst others would prefer to attend a more 
local school.  It was recognised that there would be a need for transitional 
arrangements.

 The majority of schools supported a more inclusive approach.
 One member commented that this felt like the right thing to do as they felt that 

children should be educated in their local area.  

Page 8



5
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

27 MAY 2016

 It was commented that some of the children in the units had been allowed to 
reach a point where they were failing in mainstream school before there was 
any intervention.  

 It was agreed that children staying in mainstream school was the right 
approach, but concerns were raised regarding how the model would be 
implemented, for example recruitment, capacity etc. and whether this would 
lead to a diluted offer.  Members were advised that these services would be 
provided through LCHS, and discussions in terms of recruitment had been 
positive, and it was hoped the services would continue to be delivered within 
the existing budget.  It was also noted that this model was now embedded 
within secondary schools

 The contract currently required 50% of the time in the school classroom and 
the other 50% in the unit, regardless of whether the child needed to spend that 
amount of time in the unit.   Under the proposal, there would be additional 
teaching assistant capacity, and services would be delivered mainly through 
interventions funded by the EHC plan.

 It was commented that the speech and language therapists did an excellent 
job, and it was queried how many more would be required to cover the whole 
county.  Members were advised that LCHS was working on this, and it was 
reported that they were relatively successful at recruiting these specialists, and 
were used to having to travel to meet dispersed needs.  The LCHS would build 
on what was already being done in secondary schools.

 It was highlighted that 70% of the feedback did not support the change to the 
provision.  However, members were advised that this included feedback from 
schools which had not made referrals.

 It was agreed that there was a need to keep children in school, and it was 
suggested that taking children out of class for additional needs which labelled 
them as 'special' tended to have a negative impact.  It was felt that the 
proposed model would enable children to receive support without identifying 
the child as 'different'.

 The Speech and Language Specialists would monitor the outcomes of each 
individual child.

 It was noted that children did make good progress in the units, but they also 
made good progress in mainstream schools.  Not all children with high needs 
chose to attend one of these units but remained in mainstream schools.  
Members were advised that the units covered a wide range of needs and not 
just higher speech and language needs.

RESOLVED

1. That the Committee support the recommendations to the Deputy Leader of the 
Council as set out in the report.

2. That the additional comments detailed above be passed to the Deputy Leader 
of the Council.

3. That a visit be arranged for Members to the Hearing Impaired Unit.

Page 9



6
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
27 MAY 2016

6    CENTRE FOR PUBLIC SCRUTINY'S GUIDE TO SCRUTINISING 
CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING ARRANGEMENTS

Members were reminded that on 9 October 2015 the Committee was asked to 
consider and comment on the CfPS 21 questions guide for Councillors on 
Safeguarding Children.  It was agreed that officers would provide the Committee with 
assurance in respect of the questions set out in this guide.  Consideration was given 
to a report which set out the work undertaken across children's services in response 
to questions 1, 2, 3 and 17.

These questions were as follows:
 Question 1 – What level of challenge is there in local safeguarding 

arrangements?
 Question 2 – How are those in leadership roles for local safeguarding 

arrangements held to account by the wider system?
 Question 3 – How do local commissioning arrangements, strategies and 

frontline services for children and families take into account the latest 
safeguarding guidance?

 Question 17 – Is there evidence of strong leadership of local safeguarding 
arrangements from:

 Local authority members
 The Director of Children's Services (DCS)
 The Lead Member for Children's Services 
 The Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)
 The Police

Members were provided with the opportunity to ask questions to the officers present 
in relation to the information contained within the report and some of the points raised 
included the following:

 One member commented that they sat on the LSCB scrutiny sub group and 
the adoption panel and through this involvement they were assured by the 
local safeguarding arrangements.  However, it was felt that this assurance 
may not be seen by those on the scrutiny committee, and so there was a need 
for a means of reporting through to the Committee.

 It was queried who the independent chairs were and what qualifications they 
had.  Members were advised that they were qualified registered social workers 
and sat independently to the lead officer for safeguarding.  There was a clear 
handbook on how they must operate, as well as clear escalation processes 
and a very comprehensive programme of training and support.  They were all 
qualified and experienced social workers.

 Members queried whether the independent chairs were genuinely independent 
if they were employed by the authority.  However, it was reported that they had 
the statutory right to go outside the local authority if they were not satisfied that 
the authority had acted appropriately.

 It was suggested that focus group of staff should be set up to test whether the 
answers given in the report were correct.  It was commented that this was a 
very important issue.  Members were advised that the Senior Scrutiny Officer 
would contact members regarding the arrangements.

Page 10



7
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

27 MAY 2016

RESOLVED
1. That the comments made in relation to the responses to the questions be 

noted.
2. That a focus group be arranged with staff to enable triangulation of evidence 

presented, thus supporting further challenge and assurance.

7    PROGRESS REPORT ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE SPECIAL 
EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITY REFORMS

Consideration was given to a report which provided an overview of the first full 
academic year following the implementation of the Special Educational Needs and 
Disability (SEND) reforms; comparative financial information between 2014/15 and 
2015/16; a brief update on activity so far this current academic year and information 
on key lessons learned to date.

The SEND Team Manager introduced the report, and provided a further update to the 
meeting and some of the points highlighted included the following:

 The main change had been the change from statements to Education, Health 
and Care (EHC) plans.  It was highlighted that this was not just the new ones, 
but also the children transitioning from existing statements.

 The introduction of the option of personal budgets had also been a new 
challenge, and the need to be transparent about how they were spent.  This 
had led to closer work with families.

 There was now more emphasis on outcomes and how young people were 
supported to meet their aspirations.

 There had been three main areas of work which were the production of new 
plans, working under a different timescale, and the transferring of existing 
statements into EHC plans.

 There had been an average of 50 new requests per month for EHC needs 
assessments, which was an increase.  It was reported that in Lincolnshire, 
26% of requests for an assessment were refused, but officers were looking at 
how they could work with those families to ensure that SEN provision was 
sufficient.

 In the first year there were 938 children to transfer from statements to EHC 
plans, and there were still 85 which were outstanding, however, it was 
believed that they would be completed shortly.  For this year (2016/17) there 
were 1895 to transfer, and this number was currently on target.  Next year 
(2017/18) there would be 530 to transfer, and these were mainly for those 
children at secondary school.

 Members were advised that a working group and a parent carer forum had 
been set up, which had good attendance.  There was also a steering group 
which was the more strategic group.  It was noted that there was very good 
attendance across all partners, and officers were hearing on a monthly basis 
how the implementation was working.

 Considerable training and development had been carried out.  The SEND 
reform grant was being used to support this, and a tribunal officer had also 
been appointed.

Page 11



8
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
27 MAY 2016

 There was continued work with children and families.
 Officers had worked with families and young people on the redesign of the 

EHC plan, and what was working, and what was not.  It was noted that the 
special schools continued to transfer their statements to EHC plans, and the 
authority now had a dedicated officer to work with the special schools.

The Committee welcomed Coralie Cross, the Vice-Chairman of the Parent Carer 
Forum, and her daughter Emma to the meeting.  Members were provided with an 
update on how the reforms were being implemented from the perspective of a parent 
and young person and some of the points highlighted included the following:
(Coralie Cross)

 She had been invited to be a part of the SEND project board from the start, 
and the authority had engaged well with the Forum.  Representatives attended 
regional meetings with the authority as well as reporting to the DfE.  There 
were a few examples of good practice which should be highlighted to the 
Committee which included:-

 The SEND Team Manager had invited the Forum to participate, and 
had made changes where they had been highlighted.

 Officers had been very proactive and engaged in the design of the EHC 
plan request form

 The local authority had held locality events
 There was concern that some of the SEN provision was not person centred, 

and feedback had been received from parents.
 There was still a big gap for 19-25 and parents were struggling with a lack of 

information.
 It was felt that training was needed for the adult care social workers as they 

had not been involved in the EHC plan process.
 The Forum had carried out a survey and had received 570 responses, and 

were about to publish their final report.  It was reported that 80% of parents 
were satisfied with the current education setting.

 The local authority had been struggling due to the turnover of staff and the 
level of detail required.

 There were concerns about the amount of SENCO provision.
 Parents were still very confused about the local offer, and only 40% of 

respondents knew how to access information about this.
 It seemed that health services were reluctant to be involved.
 In conclusion, the SEND reforms had been challenging to the local authority, 

parents and the parent carer forum.
(Emma Cross)

 She had been involved in the design of the EHC plan request form.
 Her EHC plan meeting had not been a positive experience, but felt that this 

could depend on the case worker.  However, the issues had now been 
resolved, and the school had been very good.

 The Internship Team had been very supportive.
 Generally it had been a positive experience, even though there had been a 

few issues, but it was suggested that there may be a need for two case 
workers as there was a lot of pressure involved in producing these plans.

Page 12



9
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

27 MAY 2016

Members were provided with the opportunity to ask questions to the officers present 
in relation to the information contained within the report, and that which had been 
reported to them, and some of the points raised during discussion included the 
following;

 The reduction of the timescale from 26 to 20 weeks had been a huge difficulty 
for the authority.

 The new system required a person centred approach which mean that staff 
were out meeting with families.

 Officers felt confident that they were getting used to the new way of working 
and there had been big improvements in the training being delivered.  The 
second year was showing that performance was quite high.

 Members commented that they found the report really helpful, and that it was 
positive that the transitional arrangements were settling down.

 Concerns were raised in relation to mediation, and that decisions were being 
overturned when new information was received.  It was queried why the 
correct information was not being obtained in the first instance.  Members 
were advised that for mediation there was a 6 week process to gather 
information.  The Tribunal Officer was going to produce a very detailed letter 
which set out what information was needed, as a lot of 'no' decisions were due 
to not having the right evidence.

 It was commented that the report indicated that Boston had the highest 
percentage of SEND needs, but it also had the biggest increase in population 
due to migration.  It was queried whether immigration was having an impact on 
the SEND service?  Members were advised, that it was thought that there had 
been some mis-coding in the January census in relation to this information, 
and there was a need to drill down further into the data.

The Chairman thanked Coralie Cross and her daughter Emma for attending the 
meeting.

RESOLVED

That the comments made in relation to this report be noted.

8    PERFORMANCE - QUARTER 4 2015/16

Consideration was given to a report which provided key performance information for 
Quarter 4 (2015/16) that was relevant to the work of the Committee.  The Council's 
Performance and Equalities Manager provided an online demonstration to the 
Committee of how members would be able to view the new style of reporting in a 
secure area on the Lincolnshire Research Observatory (LRO) website.  Members 
were advised that following approval from the Executive, this information would be 
made available to the public.

It was reported that this Committee received information on additional indicators to 
those which were included in the Council's Business Plan.

Page 13



10
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
27 MAY 2016

Members were provided with the opportunity to ask questions to the officers present 
in relation to the information contained within the report and some of the points raised 
during discussion included the following:

 It was commented that the new system was very helpful, and it was queried 
whether in the future, the Committee could move to just receiving a link to the 
information instead of a paper report.  Members were advised that the new 
system was part of an aim to go paperless in the future.  However, if this 
would be a barrier to scrutiny, it would need to be looked into further.

 It was suggested whether members should just be given a date when the 
paper versions of the information would no longer be provided, and those 
members who currently struggled with the new system could be supported 
through the process.

 Children making expected progress in Maths between Key Stage 1 and Key 
Stage 2 – it was felt that as this was below target, there was a need for 
councillors, as corporate parents, to challenge this robustly.  Members were 
advised that officers were working on developing maths hubs, as there were 
experts within schools.  It was a strategic priority in teaching schools and CPD 
programmes were being designed around this.

 SATS would be challenging for all schools, but would not be used to make 
standalone judgements.

 National research had been carried out in relation to progress of Looked After 
Children (LAC), and it been found that LAC in the right conditions made better 
progress than their peers.  It was recognised that harm could have been done 
to their progress before they went into care.  It was reported that it was more 
important to understand whether a LAC was making better than expected 
progress whilst in care.  The research had identified 18 different 
recommendations and a working group with the DfE had been set up to look at 
how they could be implemented.  Work was taking place regarding developing 
a universal way of measuring progress across the country to allow 
benchmarking to take place.

 It was reported that 4.5% of young people between 16 – 18 were classed as 
NEET (Not in Education, Employment or Training), and it was queried how 
many young people this actually was and what action could be taken to 
address it.  Members were advised that there was a particular issue with 
young people who were in employment but not receiving training.  There was 
a small number of these young people who would be in prison, and a small 
cohort would be disengaged.  However, the majority would be in employment 
with no training.  It was noted that the training to do the job itself could not be 
included as there was a need for the employer to be involved with an 
educational provider.  The Committee was advised that the figure of 4.5% 
converted to 330 young people.

 Lincolnshire's vacancy rate for social workers was very low when compared 
with other local authorities.

 Members were advised that significant action had been taken in relation to 
primary exclusions, but many of the measures would not be implemented until 
September 2016.

 Care Leavers in suitable employment, education or training – work was 
ongoing with Barnardo's to improve outcomes for these young people.

Page 14



11
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

27 MAY 2016

 It was commented that there was still a gap in attainment between those 
children receiving free school meals, and those that did not.  However, it was 
noted that this was an issue in relation to how schools were using their pupil 
premium, and this was something for individual schools to decide.  Members 
were advised that there were a lot of strategies being implemented, the 
authority's role was to influence and it could be prescriptive about how schools 
used it.

 It was commented that the authority's work with 'narrowing the gap' at primary 
level was outstanding, but it was queried how officers would ensure this 
filtered through to secondary schools.  Members were advised that secondary 
schools were already engaged with this work and it was the role of the local 
authority to share best practice. 

It was proposed, seconded and 

RESOLVED

That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public and 
press be excluded from the meeting for the consideration of Appendix E of the 
report on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 of the Act.

Officers responded to a number of questions and concerns from the Committee 
regarding the information provided in Appendix of the report.

The Chairman proposed to close the exempt session and readmit the public and 
press to the meeting.

RESOLVED

That the exempt session be closed and the meeting move back in to a public 
forum.

 
Members considered the recommendations set out in the report and it was

RESOLVED

That the comments made in relation to the performance information presented be 
noted.

9    REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL'S HOME TO SCHOOL TRANSPORT POLICY 
IN RELATION TO DISCRETIONARY GRAMMAR SCHOOL TRANSPORT - 
FINAL DECISION

The Committee was invited to consider a report on the Review of the Council's Home 
to School Transport Policy in relation to Discretionary Grammar School Transport – 
Final decision, which was due to be considered by the Deputy Leader of the Council 
on 3 June 2016.

Page 15



12
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
27 MAY 2016

The Committee was advised that the Executive received the final report arising from 
the scrutiny review at its meeting on 5 April 2016, and delegated the Executive's 
response to the final report to the Deputy Leader of the Council.  The Deputy Leader 
of the Council was invited to the consider the final report and recommendation put 
forward and decide whether to accept either of the two options outlined in the 
recommendation.

Members of the Committee were provided with the opportunity to ask questions to 
the officers present and some of the points raised during discussion included the 
following:

 It was queried whether where a child was entitled to free transport to their 
nearest school, could parents pay the extra cost for transport to a grammar 
school. It was reported that children could only have free home to school 
transport to where they were registered to be at school.

 One councillor expressed their support for option 1, whereas another 
councillor highlighted that they supported option 2.

 It was highlighted that a key element which needed to be taken into 
consideration was the sustainability of the entire education system in 
Lincolnshire. It was commented that it was important that the viability of other 
schools was not harmed.  

 It was noted that the Committee had discussed the Scrutiny Review report in 
detail at its meeting on 4 March 2016 where the report and recommendation 
was supported by a majority vote.


 Members agreed there were no further comments they would like to add since 

the committee's previous discussion on 4 March 2016.

RESOLVED

1. That the Committee support the recommendation to the Deputy Leader of the 
Council as set out in the report.

2. That the comments made be passed to the Deputy Leader of the Council in 
relation to this item.

10    CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME 2016

The Committee received a report which enabled it to consider its own work 
programme for the coming year.  It was reported that there were no amendments to 
the work programme.

Members were advised that an e-mail had been received from Andrew Garbutt 
regarding the next meeting of the Youth Cabinet on Thursday, 2 June 2016 in 
Grantham, and it had been queried whether any of the local members on the 
Committee would be interested in attending.  It was taking place from 1pm – 4pm at 
Grantham College and would cover media training, devolution and the EU 
Referendum.  Councillor L and R Wootten indicated that they would like to attend.

Page 16



13
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

27 MAY 2016

RESOLVED

1. That the content of the work programme as set out in Appendix A to the report 
be agreed

2. That the content of the Children's Services Forward Plan, as set out in 
Appendix B to the report be noted.

The meeting closed at 12.50 pm

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



  
Policy and Scrutiny

Open Report on behalf of Debbie Barnes, Executive Director of Children’s 
Services

Report to: Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee
Date: 15 July 2016
Subject: Developing a model for the charging of LCC services 

to schools
Decision Reference:  Key decision? No 
Summary: 

The purpose of the report is to inform the Children and Young People Scrutiny 
Committee on the development of a common approach to the recovery of costs 
where schools, academies and other education organisations in Lincolnshire 
access services delivered by Lincolnshire County Council (LCC).

The approach will also involve exploring opportunities to provide a single 
comprehensive source of information and access for schools, academies and 
other organisations to receive all of the services they need. LCC Services in 
scope of cost recovery would be reviewed periodically to ensure each offer is 
comprehensive, with clear benefits with an agreed cost structure for each 
support package. To support the process by which schools, academies and 
other education organisations are able to learn about and access the support 
available we aim to translate the services offered into a digital form similar to an 
'E-commerce' environment.

This involves standardising terms and conditions and the formula we use to 
ensure the full recovery of costs for service activities. This will necessarily 
involve an analysis of the nature of the services delivered and the degree to 
which the cost of delivery can properly be recovered and will have an impact on 
some services which currently are discretionary and for which LCC does not 
charge.

There are four categories of services which form LCC's support and potential 
support to schools:

a. Services which are currently provided and do not charge but which 
seek a decision to charge

b. New services which it is proposed to provide and for which it is 
proposed to charge

c. Services which currently do not charge and will continue not to 
charge

d. Services which charge and will continue to charge

This report seeks to inform the Committee on the principle of cost recovery in 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



the delivery of discretionary services in the future and on the proposals set out 
in this report relating to the first two categories above.

The report also informs the Committee that LCC seeks to charge an amount to 
new Academies to cover the cost to the Council of supporting the conversion 
process.

At its meeting on 5 July 2016, the Executive approved the eight 
recommendations as detailed below. As the proposals related to a range of 
council services, the Executive report was considered by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Committee at its meeting on 30 June 2016, where it 
supported the recommendations in principle but requested a further report on 
the charges for individual services. 

Actions Required:

The Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee is invited to 

1.  Note and comment on the support services currently provided by LCC to 
maintained schools and Academies set out in Part 4 of Appendix A for 
which LCC charges and will continue to charge

2. Note and comment on the support services currently provided by LCC to 
maintained schools and Academies set out in Part 3 of Appendix A for which 
LCC does not charge and does not propose to charge

3. Note and comment on the principle of charging schools, Academies and 
other education organisations for discretionary services provided by LCC on 
a cost recovery basis.

4. Note and comment on the new and existing support services set out in Parts 
1 and 2 of Appendix A, that from 1 September 2016, LCC recover the cost of 
the provision of such services from schools, Academies and other education 
organisations through appropriate charging mechanisms to be developed for 
each such service

5. Note and comment in relation to all support services to schools the 
development of a single source of information and access to services 
including by way of digital access similar to an e-commerce environment

6. Note and comment on the  authority being delegated to the relevant Chief 
Officer, in consultation with the relevant Executive Councillor, for each 
service area to approve the amount and recovery mechanism appropriate to 
each service set out in Parts 1 and 2 of Appendix A and the offering of 
further discretionary services to schools, Academies and other education 
organisations and the amount and cost recovery mechanism appropriate to 
each such service

Page 20



7. Note and comment on the authority being delegated to the Executive 
Director of Children's Services in consultation with the Executive Councillor 
responsible for Children's Services to approve the final form of the proposed 
single source of information and access to LCC support services.

8. Note and comment on the making of a flat rate charge of £6,500 for 
standard conversions to schools that choose to convert to academy status to 
cover officer time and legal charges incurred by LCC.  

1. Background

Recovering the cost of Services

Under sections 13, 13A and 14 of the Education Act 1996 LCC has statutory duties 
to: 

 ensure that efficient primary, secondary and further education is available to 
meet the needs of its population; 

 ensure that its education functions are exercised with a view to promoting 
high standards ensuring fair access to opportunity for education and 
learning, and promote the fulfilment of learning potential; and 

 ensure that sufficient schools for providing primary and secondary education 
are available for its area.

LCC retains its obligations in relation to the full range of education provision in the 
area whether schools convert or have converted to Academy status or not.

Historically, part of LCC's fulfilment of these duties especially those relating to 
efficiency and quality and the promotion of the fulfilment of learning potential has 
been the provision of a range of support services to schools and more recently 
Academies.  These have been principally provided through Children's Services or 
CfBT as LCC's partner.

At the same time other LCC services have been provided to schools and 
Academies which have been provided more in support of schools in the operation 
of their businesses such as Finance, property or health and safety support thereby 
contributing to efficiency.

Some of these services may themselves be separate specific statutory 
responsibilities.  Others are discretionary. For some of these services LCC 
recovers the costs of delivery, for others it does not.  Whether or not costs are 
recovered is largely determined by historical circumstances and has not been 
driven by a strategic approach.

The context in which LCC's support to schools across the board must be assessed 
is one of declining government funding for local authority services.  Over the past 6 

Page 21



years government funding to LCC has reduced by some 40% of the Council's 
annual income from central government (excluding school budgets).
Over the period from 2009/10 to the end of the 2015/16 financial year LCC has 
made some £145m of savings.  It is known that further savings of £130m will be 
required between 2016 and 2020.

These savings have been and will continue to have to be achieved against a 
background of increasing cost pressures including the cost of adult social care for 
an ageing population and more generally the national living wage.  Furthermore the 
Council has maintained a balanced budget over the last two years by calling on 
reserves. Once used reserves are gone and they are not a sustainable form of 
funding for services. 
In the course of the savings that have been made to date as referred to above the 
contribution made by schools to the cost of support services has not been 
systematically approached. In the circumstances it is appropriate to consider 
whether the scope of the support services in respect of which a contribution is 
made by schools to the cost of support be increased. To continue to provide 
services to schools without increasing the extent to which costs are recovered will 
potentially require additional cuts to be made to other services in order to maintain 
the support services at current levels. Alternatively LCC would have to look making 
savings in the cost of providing support services to schools which would impact on 
the level of the current services, especially those that are discretionary.  

If that happened either schools would not receive support or the Council would 
have less control over the quality of the support services going into schools. This 
would in turn make it less able to assure itself in its fulfilment of its functions in 
relation to the efficient provision of quality education.

At the same time introducing a cost recovery mechanism will provide much more 
information to LCC as to the resource being used in the delivery of the services to 
schools Academies and other organisations and their efficiency.  When the schools 
Academies and other organisations pay on a cost recovery model they will make 
choices about how they spend their budgets.  LCC will then have more information 
as to the services schools Academies and organisations value and feel they need 
which will in turn identify the LCC services which meet those needs and which are 
sustainable.  Future decisions about the services to be provided will therefore be 
more informed.

LCC does not have a joined up and efficient process of making available its 
services to schools, academies and other educational organisations in 
Lincolnshire. There is no one consistent method of engagement with schools; with 
all areas who offer a support service all doing something differently and 
independent of each other. This piecemeal approach not only makes it hard for 
schools to engage with the Local Authority, but also for them to understand what 
services are available to meet their individual needs, whether the Council seeks to 
recover its costs and if so whether it is within their available funds.

There is an opportunity to review all the services which are offered  to schools, not 
only to make it a coherent offer, which meets the real needs of Lincolnshire 
schools, but also to provide consistent recovery of full costs, and offering excellent 

Page 22



value for money. Ideally this would be accessible through one website which 
provides details of the wide range of services available to Lincolnshire's schools 
and academies. In the short term the services would be able to be requested 
through this site. Medium to long term the proposal is to have an area where all 
schools can browse and place an online request for services offered by 
Lincolnshire County Council. This would present a more coherent and better 
experience for school leaders when reviewing service information and accessing 
services from Lincolnshire County Council.  The County Council will need to review 
how charged-for services are taken up. It may need to demonstrate how its 
statutory duties are being met when services that are charged for are not taken up.

A Project Board has been set up to provide a balanced view on how the services 
can be offered to schools as well as coordinating a consistent offer. The Board's 
membership is cross cutting and includes: Children's Services – Education 
Support, Learning and Commissioning, Finance, Fire and Rescue, Environment 
and Economy, Public Health, Sustainability, Safer Communities, Digital 
Engagement, Health and Safety, and Audit and Risk. 

To support a consistent offer a list has been compiled of all support services for 
which the Council already recovers its costs through charging schools. This is set 
out in Part 4 of Appendix A.

An analysis has also been undertaken of the legal basis of the services being 
provided to ensure that cost recovery is not applied to any services that LCC is 
under a statutory obligation to deliver. This has resulted in a list of support services 
provided to schools for which the Council does not recover cost and does not 
propose to recover cost.  This is set out in Part 3 of Appendix A, and for the 
following services, recovering the costs would not be appropriate:

 Road Safety Awareness Lessons for Primary Schools - not funded by LCC, 
it is jointly funded through a number of partner agencies within the 
Lincolnshire Road Safety Partnership (LRSP). LCC Education funding has 
been removed from the budget this year as part of the budget review. The 
LRSP Board has historically agreed that income generated as a result of 
enforcement should be utilised to fund road safety. . 

 Display Energy Certificate for Maintained Schools – not appropriate to 
charge as supplied free of charge for maintained schools, as agreed in the 
Property contract between LCC and schools. 

 Countryside Access Education Pack – not appropriate to charge. There has 
only ever been one print run and there are no current plans to print any 
more.  The whole pack is available to download from the county council 
website. A possible income option would be to charge for a service to 
schools where and the service works with schools to promote the 
understanding and use of rights of way and the wider countryside (this could 
include the role of rights of way in sustainable travel, wellbeing and tourism 
as well as map reading and the countryside code).

 Bikeability and Bikeability Plus – no cost for the Local Authority service as it 
is funded via a grant from the Department for Transport.  LCC applies for a 
funding to deliver an amount of sessions and claim the money in arrears on 

Page 23



an annual basis, being subject to audit to ensure that the monies are spent 
on Bikeability.

 Provide Guidance on the completion of Fire Risk Assessment - Not 
appropriate to charge – provision of service is included within the statutory 
duties under the Fire Services Act 2004.

 Fire Safety Awareness - Not appropriate to charge – service is an offer of 
advice to staff and is included within the statutory duties under the Fire 
Services Act for LCC employees, which includes maintained schools – A 
traded offer will be explored for Academies.

 Annual Health and Safety Self-Assessment for controlled Schools - The 
schools self-assessment programme was introduced following a visit from 
the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) several years ago. Failure to 
continue this service for our controlled schools could result in LCC being 
unable to show how we are monitoring H&S standard within our schools, 
which was the original concern the HSE had and why we introduced the 
self-assessment programme. 

 Our responsibility to provide home to school transport gives rise to 
consequential statutory duties that are presently fulfilled by the following 
means, which should not be charged to schools:

o Transport advice and support – to ensure compliance with statutory 
obligations, mainly relating to children's safety and schools/LA 
responsibilities on a needs-led basis only.

o Transport Inspections and risk assessment - to comply with health 
and safety legislation and vehicle and other statutory safety 
requirements. 

This has left existing services for which the Council could recover cost or new 
services the cost of providing which could be recovered.  These are listed in Parts 
1 and 2 of Appendix A. This Report proposes that cost recovery is put in place for 
the services in Parts 1 and 2 of Appendix A in addition to those in Part 4 of 
Appendix A and all those services (Parts 1, 2 and 4) are made subject to the co-
ordinated consistent offer referred to above.

More generally, the Committee is asked to note and comment on the principle that 
the cost recovery model will be used whenever discretionary services are offered 
to schools including potential future services not listed at all in Appendix A. It is 
proposed a delegation to the relevant Chief Officer in consultation with the relevant 
Executive Councillor to offer additional services and determine the basis on which 
they will be offered.

To support a consistent offer the Board requested a standardised toolkit to be 
produced by Finance colleagues in consultation with the relevant service area. The 
toolkit includes staffing costs plus an element of overhead costs such as 
accommodation, insurances, information management, HR and payroll, financial 
services and finance support. Costs can be calculated on a daily, half-daily or 
hourly basis. 

The Committee is also asked to note and comment on a delegation to enable 
Executive Directors in consultation with the relevant Executive Councillor to identify 
the appropriate charge based on use of the toolkit described above.

Page 24



Academy Conversion

The Government's education white paper "Educational Excellence Everywhere", 
states "by the end of 2020, all remaining maintained schools will be academies or 
in the process of conversion". Although more recently it has been decided that this 
will not be enforced by law, the Government have made it quite clear that 
academisation continues to be the direction of travel.

So far in Lincolnshire, 132 of 361 schools have converted to Academy status. This 
represents 36% of the schools in Lincolnshire. These schools educate 
approximately 61% of all the pupils in Lincolnshire. There are still 228 maintained 
schools in Lincolnshire educating 39% of the pupils. The average cohort size in 
academies is approximately 470 whereas the average cohort size in maintained 
schools is approximately 177. Sixty-four of the remaining schools are primary 
schools with fewer than 100 pupils. 

Schools that choose to convert to become an academy benefit from a financial 
support grant of £25,000 to pay for the associated conversion costs, which is 
usually more than the actual cost of conversion to the school. Local authorities get 
no such financial help. The costs incurred by Lincolnshire County Council have 
been borne by the council funded budget. Lincolnshire's council funding is under 
significant financial pressure as described earlier in this Report. It is no longer 
considered sustainable for LCC to absorb such costs moving forward. 

The charge to schools would offset the cost of legal, educational officer and school 
finance officer time, in facilitating the academy conversion. The actual costs 
incurred in any single conversion depend on the complexity of the conversion and 
the issues raised. In order to identify a flat rate charge a range of costs have been 
established from considering actual conversions and a judgment made as to the 
costs of a "standard" conversion. These have then been compared with the 
charges used by other Authorities that are charging.

It is also requested that the Committee notes and comments on the charge of 
£6,500 that would apply to any school converting to academy status that submits 
an application to convert to the Department for Education (DfE) after 20th May 
2016. Any schools that have submitted an application to the DfE prior to that date 
would not be subject to the charge.

Equality Act 2010

The Council's duty under the Equality Act 2010 needs to be taken into account 
when coming to a decision.

The Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to:

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010

Page 25

https://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/runRemoteLink.do?langcountry=GB&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%252010_15a_Title%25&risb=21_T11624841281&bct=A&service=citation&A=0.4026760067779367


 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it

 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it: Equality Act 2010 section 
149(1). The relevant protected characteristics are age; disability; gender 
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual 
orientation: section 149(7)

Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity involves having 
due regard, in particular, to the need to:

 Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic

 Take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share 
it

 Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionately low

The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different from 
the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to take 
account of disabled persons' disabilities.

Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who share 
a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having 
due regard, in particular, to the need to tackle prejudice, and promote 
understanding.

Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons more 
favourably than others.    

A reference to conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act includes a reference 
to:

 A breach of an equality clause or rule
 A breach of a non-discrimination rule

This duty cannot be delegated and must be discharged by the decision-maker. To 
discharge the statutory duty the decision-maker must analyse all the relevant 
material with the specific statutory obligations in mind.  If a risk of adverse impact is 
identified consideration must be given to measures to avoid that impact as part of 
the decision making process.

An Equality Impact Analysis has not been specifically carried out for this proposal 
but potential impacts on people with a protected characteristic have been 
assessed.  There are no proposed changes to the services offered and therefore 
no direct impact on service users with protected characteristics is anticipated. The 
offer is to recover costs to LCC as well as providing better access to services. 
However, it will have a financial impact on schools who currently obtain services 

Page 26

https://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/runRemoteLink.do?langcountry=GB&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23section%25149%25sect%25149%25num%252010_15a%25&risb=21_T11624841281&bct=A&service=citation&A=0.8213227680330027
https://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/runRemoteLink.do?langcountry=GB&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23section%25149%25sect%25149%25num%252010_15a%25&risb=21_T11624841281&bct=A&service=citation&A=0.8213227680330027


free of charge due to a change in charging formula. As a result, schools, 
Academies and other organisations may choose not to take services they would 
currently take.  Those services may be aimed at addressing equality issues such 
as training on equalities.  If that occurred there would potentially be an adverse 
impact on people with a protected characteristic.  The impact is mitigated as 
Schools and Academies have their own responsibilities to address equality issues.

Child Poverty Strategy

The Council is under a duty in the exercise of its functions to have regard to its 
Child Poverty Strategy. Child poverty is one of the key risk factors that can 
negatively influence a child’s life chances. Children that live in poverty are at 
greater risk of social exclusion which, in turn, can lead to poor outcomes for the 
individual and for society as a whole.

In Lincolnshire we consider that poverty is not only a matter of having limited 
financial resources but that it is also about the ability of families to access the 
means of lifting themselves out of poverty and of having the aspiration to do so. 
The following four key strategic themes form the basis of Lincolnshire’s Child 
Poverty strategy: Economic Poverty, Poverty of Access, Poverty of Aspiration and 
Best Use of Resources.

Education is recognised as a key component of an anti-poverty strategy. The Child 
Poverty Strategy aims have been taken into account in this report. By delivering 
services to schools directly from LCC it provides sufficiency and quality of provision 
to help enable schools to continue to provide effective education provision.

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) / Joint Health & Well Being 
Strategy (JHWS)

The JSNA reports on the health and wellbeing needs of the people of Lincolnshire.  
It brings together detailed information on local health and wellbeing needs and 
looks ahead at emerging challenges and projected future needs.

The Lincolnshire JSNA identifies a number of needs that directly relate to young 
people. The policy on transport support under-pins the identified topics and aims of 
the JSNA, in particular Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

The Lincolnshire JSNA and JHWS identify a number of needs that directly relate to 
young people. The recommended key decisions support the aims of the JSNA and 
JHWS in the following areas: 

 Improve health and social outcomes and reduce inequalities 
 Achieve potential
 Improve educational attainment

Each of the above aims are specifically addressed by the key decision to enhance 
access to services LCC offers to schools, academies and other educational 
organisations. 

Page 27



2. Conclusion

By the Executive approving the recommendations, LCC can continue implementing 
a model for recovering the true costs of delivering services to schools, academies 
and other educational organisations. This will enable services to become more 
sustainable, as well as supporting the sufficiency of the market-place and providing 
effective services that schools can trust. Using the supporting information within 
the report and the appendix there is evidence why LCC should be recovering our 
costs to ensure the sustainability and validity of the services. The next steps are to 
fully implement a central system for ordering services that directly complements the 
existing ordering arrangements for services. As suggested, in the medium to long 
term, an E-commerce type of environment can be established that customers can 
place orders and make payments through.

3. Consultation

a)  Policy Proofing Actions Required
See the body of the report.

4. Appendices

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report
Appendix A Support Services to Schools, Academies and other education 

organisations

5. Background Papers

No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report.

This report was written by Miriam Binsztok, who can be contacted on 01522-
553782 or at Miriam.Binsztok@lincolnshire.gov.uk.

Page 28



1

Appendix A

1. Services which are currently provided and do not charge but which seek a 
decision to charge

Professional 
Services

Doug Robinson 
(Sustainability 
Team)

SCoRE – Schools Collaboration on Resource 
Efficiency 

Professional 
Services

Doug Robinson 
(Sustainability 
Team)

Display Energy Certificates for academies

Professional 
Services

Steve Golightly 
(Sustainability 
team)

SALIX fund – energy savings initiative

Professional 
Services

Steve Golightly 
(Sustainability 
team)

Energy efficiency funding support for academies

Professional 
Services

Marie 
Robertson/ Lucy 
Pledge

Auditing of HR cases relating to safeguarding 
issues

Pupils Dave Clarke Insight into Custody workshop for students

Pupils Andy Cook Knife Crime workshop for student's workshop.

The Youth Offending Service is commissioned by 
LCC, Police, OPCC, NPS and the Youth Justice 
Board and decisions of this nature sit with the Youth 
Offending Board. YOS charge for Knife Crime 
Workshops

Seek decision to charge unless they are actioned by 
the YOS Board in response to concerns about knife 
crime in areas of risk.

Pupils John O'Connor 
(Education 
Support)

Food in Schools

Pupils John Herbert Anti Bullying Training for Staff - Academies and 
others

Pupils John Herbert Anti Bullying Workshop for students - academies 
and others 

Pupils John Herbert Homophobia, Biphobia & Transphobia training for 
staff - academies and others

Pupils John Herbert Homophobia, Biphobia & Transphobia workshop for 
students - academies and others

Pupils David Sampher Physical activity programme/sessions for students

Pupils David Sampher Personal Best  Goal setting Programme

Pupils David Sampher Team Building Workshop 

Pupils David Sampher Sports Leadership programmes

Page 29



2

Pupils David Sampher Winning Ways personal development sessions

Pupils John Herbert Participation and engagement training for pupils - 
academies and others

Pupils John Herbert Participation and engagement training for staff - 
academies and others

Pupils John Herbert Careers - Year 11 options workshops - academies 
and others

Pupils John Herbert Careers - Higher Education applications workshop - 
academies and others

Pupils John O'Connor 
(Education 
Support)

Education Support - Inclusion & Attendance Team - 
Development for School  staff 

Pupils John O'Connor 
(Education 
Support)

Education Support - Free school meal eligibility 
checking service for Schools

Pupils John Herbert Anti Bullying Workshop for students - Schools

Pupils John Herbert Homophobia, Biphobia & Transphobia training for 
staff - Schools

Pupils John Herbert Homophobia, Biphobia & Transphobia workshop for 
students  -Schools 

Pupils John Herbert Participation and engagement training for pupils - 
Schools

Pupils John Herbert Participation and engagement training for staff - 
Schools

Pupils John Herbert Careers - Year 11 options workshops - Schools

Pupils John Herbert Careers - Higher Education applications workshop - 
Schools

Professional 
Services

Karen Shooter Domestic Abuse/MARAC. Training for staff in 
schools.

This is funded by LCC Safer Communities as it is a 
critical area in respect of Safeguarding both adults 
and children. The training is aimed at Teachers to 
enable them to understand DA / MARAC and how 
they should support and intervene to protect 
children living in a DA environment. The DASMB is 
not funded like LSCB or LSAB who both train 
partners in respect of Safeguarding. Presently we 
suffer in excess of 25,000 cases of DA in 
Lincolnshire each. Other partners, particularly the 
Police and OPCC support this issue by funding the 
IDVA services and services for young people 
suffering sexual violence. 

Seek decision to charge but if delivering a session 
does not incur costs to LCC, waive charge with 
discretion.

Professional John O'Connor Education Support - Inclusion & Attendance Team 

Page 30



3

Services (Education 
Support)

for Schools - Safeguarding in schools audit

Peoples John O'Connor 
(Education 
Support)

Education Support - Inclusion & Attendance Team - 
Safer recruitment training for Schools

Peoples John O'Connor 
(Education 
Support)

Education Support - Inclusion & Attendance Team - 
Training for School Designated Safeguarding Leads

Peoples John O'Connor 
(Education 
Support)

Education Support - Inclusion & Attendance Team - 
Training for School Safeguarding - train the trainer

Pupils John Herbert Anti Bullying Training for Staff

Pupils John Monk School Travel Plan initiatives and resources, 
including: Wow, Steposuaurus, Big Bike Race, 
Golden Boot Challenge, Pete & Sophie boards

Professional 
Services

Steve Batchelor Road Safety Awareness Lessons - Secondary  
schools

Formal events and presentations will be charged
Pupils John Monk Energy from Waste tours.

The visitor centre is presently financed by LCC 
though the waste gate fee paid to the contractor. 
Subject to commercial negotiation, any charge may 
be levied by the plant operator. 

Pupils Sean Taylor - 
LFR Business 
Support Team

Lincolnshire Fire & Rescue - Y2 / Y6 education 
programme for pupils 

There are a small number of schools at high risk of 
arson, LFR see benefit in providing to those schools 
without charge as part of our prevention strategy.

Seek decision to charge but waive charge with 
discretion for schools of high risk to support 
preventative work.

Pupils Sean Taylor - 
LFR Business 
Support Team

Lincolnshire Fire & Rescue - It's That Easy 

Although this is offered as part of a traded offer , 
there are some benefits to providing this to schools 
without charge as part of LFR prevention strategy 
on condition that it does not result in additional 
costs to LCC  Delivery of the programme would be 
targeted to at risk schools and the charge waived 
with discretion 

Seek decision to charge but waive charge with 
discretion.

Professional 
Services

Sean Taylor - 
LFR Business 

Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue Stay Safe Campaigns 

Although this is offered as part of a traded offer, 

Page 31



4

Support Team there are some benefits to providing this to schools 
without charge as part of our prevention strategy on 
condition that it does not result in additional costs to 
LCC. Delivery of the programme would be targeted 
to at risk schools and the charge waived with 
discretion

Seek decision to charge but waive charge with 
discretion.

2. New services which it is proposed to provide and for which it is proposed to 
charge

Professional 
Services

Fraser Shooter New Service - standard training courses for schools 
i.e. manual handling, COSHH etc 

Professional 
Services

Fraser Shooter New Service - bespoke, designed to suit Health & 
Safety training to meet the needs of the schools  

Professional 
Services

Fraser Shooter Health & Safety audits & reports  

Professional 
Services

Fraser Shooter Health & Safety areas/subject specific inspections  
and reports 

Professional 
Services

Fraser Shooter Schools annual self-assessment programme for 
LCC controlled schools 

Professional 
Services

Fraser Shooter Schools annual self-assessment programme for 
non- LCC controlled schools 

Professional 
Services

Fraser Shooter Provided support and advice with the undertaking of 
risk assessment 

Professional 
Services

Fraser Shooter Provided support and advice with the development 
of Policies and Procedures 

Professional 
Services

John Monk Professional Highway – civil engineering advice

Professional 
Services

John Monk Professional planning advice

Pupils John Monk SEN Bikeability

Pupils John Monk Scooterbility

Pupils John Monk 6th Form cycling training

Pupils John Monk School Travel plans resources – sustainable travel 
workshop

Professional 
Services

Marisa 
McGreevy

Health & Safety service offer to Academies 

Professional 
Services

Marisa 
McGreevy

Risk Management work for Academies

Page 32



5

Professional 
Services

Andrew Mclean Strategic Commissioning

3. Services which currently do not charge and will continue not to charge

Professional 
Services

Steve Batchelor Road Safety Awareness Lessons - Primary schools

Not appropriate to charge: All training in respect of 
road safety, delivered by the LRSP will be funded 
from enforcement income. 

Professional 
Services

Doug Robinson 
(Sustainability 
Team)

Display Energy Certificate – Maintained Schools 
only

Not appropriate to charge – displaying energy 
certificates is a requirement of LCC as a part of our 
property management duties for maintained 
schools. 

Pupils John Monk Countryside Access Education Pack 

Not appropriate to charge. This was produced as 
part of the Rights of Way Improvement Plan works 
and was a one off cost that was part funded. Once 
the packs are distributed the project will come to a 
natural conclusion.

Pupils John Monk School transport - home to school transport 

Not appropriate to charge – home to school 
transport as per LCC policy

Pupils Steve Batchelor School crossing patrols

Pupils Steve Batchelor School Safety Zones

We will explore charging School for feasibility 
studies.

Pupils John Monk Independent Travel Training for SEND students 
travelling on school transport.

Pupils John Monk Bikeability and Bikebility Plus 

Not appropriate to charge - There is no cost to LCC 
for Bikeability. This is funded by a grant by the 
Department for Transport.

Pupils John O'Connor 
(Education 
Support)

Education Support - Admissions Access to 
WEBVIEW  and Independent Admission Appeals- 
For Schools

Page 33



6

Peoples Karen Shooter Domestic Abuse/MARAC. Support and advise for 
schools over the telephone

Not appropriate to charge – this is a part of a 
safeguarding package to ensure that Schools take 
appropriate action in respect of serious incidents or 
concerns for welfare. 

Professional 
Services

Sean Taylor – 
LFR Business 
Support Team 

Provide Guidance on the completion of Fire Risk 
Assessment 

Not appropriate to charge – included within the 
statutory duties under the Fire Services Act 2004.

Professional 
Services

Sean Taylor - 
LFR Business 
Support Team

LFR Commercial - Fire Safety Awareness

Not appropriate to charge - this is advise to staff 
and is included within the statutory duties under the 
Fire Services Act for LCC employees which 
includes maintained schools – A traded offer will be 
explored for Academies 

Professional 
Services

Fraser Shooter Schools annual health and safety self-assessment 
programme for LCC controlled schools

Not appropriate to charge – service provides LCC 
with assurance that controlled Schools are 
compliant with Health and Safety regulations. 

Professional 
Services - 
Finance

Mark Popplewell Finance support with allocation of funding, Prime 
Account Schools operation, calculation and 
payment of bank deposits for Prime Account 
Schools Maintenance of Accounts for maintained 
schools, closure of Accounts work for maintained 
schools, Statutory and statistical returns for 
maintained schools, financial Handbooks and 
Guidance for maintained schools, providing a 
Medium-term Finance Plan for maintained schools.

Pupils John Monk Transport advice and support.

Not appropriate to charge – service is offered to 
ensure compliance with statutory obligations, mainly 
relating to children's safety and schools/LA 
responsibilities on a needs-led basis only.

Pupils John Monk Transport inspections and risk assessments.

Not appropriate to charge – service is offered to 
comply with health and safety legislation and 
vehicle and other statutory safety requirements. 

Page 34



7

4. Services which charge and will continue to charge

Professional 
Services

Rachel Abbott Insurance for schools

Professional 
Services

Rachel Abbott Audit work for schools - Full Audit

Professional 
Services

Rachel Abbott Audit work for schools - Assurance visit

Professional 
Services

Rachel Abbott Audit work for schools - Final Account Audit

Professional 
Services

Rachel Abbott Audit work for schools - School Fund Audit

Professional 
Services

Rachel Abbott Independent investigation service to schools

Professional 
Services

Sean Taylor – 
LFR Business 
Support Team 

Lincolnshire Fire & Rescue - Fire Break Intervention 
Programme

Professional 
Services

Sean Taylor – 
LFR Business 
Support Team 

Lincolnshire Fire & Rescue Commercial – Fire 
Marshall course 

Professional 
Services

John Monk Tree Safety Surveys 

Peoples Mark Harrison Hard Facilities Management

Peoples Mark Harrison Hard Facilities Management

Peoples Steve Batchelor Driver training 

Professional 
Services

John Monk Legal Services

Professional 
Services

Caroline 
Jackson

Performance

Professional 
Services

Alex Botten Procurement Services

Professional 
Services

John Monk Public Rights of Way advice

Professional 
Services

Mark Harrison Soft Facilities Management

Professional 
Services

Mark Harrison Hard Facilities Management

Professional 
Services

Mark Harrison Statutory Inspections

Professional 
Services

Mark Harrison Other Property Services

Pupils John O'Connor 
(Education 
Support)

Education Support - Lincolnshire Music Service

Professional 
Services

John O'Connor 
(Education 
Support)

Education Support - Inclusion & Attendance Team 
for Schools - Safeguarding in schools audit for 
Academies and other educational establishments

Page 35



8

Peoples John O'Connor 
(Education 
Support)

Education Support - Inclusion & Attendance Team - 
Safer recruitment training for Academies and other 
educational establishments

Peoples John O'Connor 
(Education 
Support)

Education Support - Inclusion & Attendance Team - 
Training for School Designated Safeguarding Leads 
- for Academies and other educational 
establishments

Peoples John O'Connor 
(Education 
Support)

Education Support - Inclusion & Attendance Team - 
Training for School Safeguarding - train the trainer - 
for Academies and other educational 
establishments

Peoples John O'Connor 
(Education 
Support)

Education Support - Inclusion & Attendance Team - 
Development for School  staff - for Academies and 
other educational establishments

Pupils John O'Connor 
(Education 
Support)

Education Support - Admissions Access to 
WEBVIEW and Independent Admissions Appeal - 
for Academies and other educational 
establishments

Pupils John O'Connor 
(Education 
Support)

Education Support - Ethnic Minority & Traveller 
Education Team (EMTET) - for Academies and 
other educational establishments

Pupils John O'Connor 
(Education 
Support)

Education Support - Free school meal eligibility 
checking service for Schools - for Academies and 
other educational establishments

Professional 
Services

Steve Batchelor Road Safety Awareness - 2Fast2Soon

Professional 
Services - 
Finance

Mark Popplewell Agresso Maintained Schools Gold; Silver and 
Bronze Service Finance Offer

Professional 
Services - 
Finance

Mark Popplewell The option to purchase ad hoc services from the 
Council's Schools Business Support Service 
(SBSS): 
- Finance Plan / Budget Setting; 
- Outturn Projections; 
- Schools Financial Value Standard Support; 

School Fund Audit; 
- On-site Bursary Service; 
- Governor Training tailored to the school's 

needs; 
- Governor Support; Agresso Training;
- Interview process for Finance Staff, and 
- Other ad hoc requirements.

Pupils John O'Connor 
(Education 
Support)

Education Support - Ethnic Minority & Traveller 
Education Team (EMTET) – For maintained  
primary  *Pre-paid service by Schools

Pupils John O'Connor 
(Education 
Support)

Education Support - Ethnic Minority & Traveller 
Education Team (EMTET) – for secondary Schools.

Page 36



9

Pupils William Brown 
(Heritage 
Service) 

Formal educational engagement sessions for 
Schools – Education Team delivered, and self-led 
sessions on sites: Castle, The Collection, Usher Art 
Gallery, Museum of Lincolnshire Life, Gainsborough 
Old Hall, Battle of Britain Memorial Flight and The 
Archives.

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Policy and Scrutiny

Open Report on behalf of Debbie Barnes, Executive Director of Children's 
Services

Report to: Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee
Date: 15 July 2016
Subject: Corporate Parenting Panel Update 
Decision Reference:  Key decision? No 
Summary: 
The work of the Corporate Parenting Panel remains critical in promoting life 
chances and opportunities for vulnerable children, looked after children and 
care leavers.  Members act as champions on behalf of these groups of children 
and young people. The Panel meets on a quarterly basis and includes 
representatives from looked after children and foster carers.

Through the presentation of reports, performance information, and Visiting 
Members responsibilities, the Panel scrutinise that the arrangements for the 
safety and welfare of looked after children and care leavers are in accordance 
with what every good parent would want for their own child.

It is agreed that the minutes of the Corporate Parenting Panel be presented to 
the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee, and attached are the draft 
minutes of the meeting held on 9th June 2016.

Actions Required:
The Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee is asked to note the work 
of the Corporate Parenting Panel and to consider the matters raised and 
addressed.

1. Background

The Panel meets quarterly and is continually evolving and is very proactive in 
seeking information to inform Members about the quality of services provided by 
the Local Authority and partner agencies, as is evidenced in the recording of the 
minutes.

2. Conclusion

The ongoing scrutiny process looking at how well we meet our respective 
responsibilities and the different aspects of a child and young person's needs is 
pivotal to the work of the Corporate Parenting Panel. The attached draft minutes 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



provide an account of the work undertaken since the previous Panel held on 10th 
March 2016.

3. Consultation

a)  Policy Proofing Actions Required
n/a

4. Appendices

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report
Appendix A Corporate Parenting Panel Meeting Minutes 09/06/2016

5. Background Papers

No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report.

This report was written by Tara Jones, Service Manager Regulated Services, who 
can be contacted on 01522 552686 or tara.jones@lincolnshire.gov.uk.

Page 40



1

CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL
9 JUNE 2016

6PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR  D BRAILSFORD (CHAIRMAN)

Lincolnshire County Council: Councillors J D Hough (Vice-Chairman), 
A G Hagues, R A H McAuley, P J O'Connor and L Wootten.

Ron Oliver (Barnardo's) attended the meeting as an observer.

Officers in attendance:-

Kieran Barnes (Head of Virtual School, Looked After Children), John Harris (Service 
Manager Regulated North and Fostering), Tara Jones (Service Manager Regulated 
South and Adoption), Ildiko Kiss (Regulation 43 Visitor), Alison Poxon (Youth Hub 
Manager), Yvonne Shearwood (Quality and Standards Manager), Katrina Cope 
(Senior Democratic Services Officer), Tracy Johnson (Senior Scrutiny Officer), 
Rebecca Andrews (Principal Lawyer, Legal Services) and Tanya Marten (Customer 
Relations and Complaints Manager).

1    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Mrs Marilyn Graham-Williams (Foster 
Carer), Mrs Polly Coombes (Foster Carer), Mary-Beth Pepperdine (Children in Care 
Council) and Jean Burbidge (Community Health Service). 

Apologies were also received from Annie Fletcher (Barnardo's) and Nicola Leaning 
(Legal Services Lincolnshire).

It was reported that Mrs Marilyn Graham-Williams (Foster Carer) had resigned from 
the Panel.  The Chairman reported that he would write a letter of thanks to Mrs 
Graham-Williams on behalf of the Panel. 

2    DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS

There were no declarations of members' interest made at this point in the meeting.

3    MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 10 MARCH 2016

Pursuant to Minute No 51 from the minutes from the last meeting, the Chairman 
confirmed that after receiving information from Barnardo's he had decided not to 
pursue contacting 'dual hatters' with regard to access to housing for Care Leavers.  
Instead, he had written a letter to one District Council Leader expressing his 
concerns with regard to access to housing for Care Leavers.  The Chairman advised 
that an update would be provided regarding this issue to a future meeting of the 
Panel.

Page 41



2
CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL
9 JUNE 2016

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the Corporate Parenting Panel meeting held on 10 March 
2016 be signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

4    LEGAL SERVICES ANNUAL REPORT

The Panel received an end of year report on Legal Services Lincolnshire from 
Rebecca Andrews (Principal Lawyer, Legal Services).  The report covered care 
proceedings issued between April 2014 and March 2015 in respect of 210 children, 
consisting of 195 applications for Care Orders, and 15 for Supervision Orders; and 
from April 2015 to March 2016, data relating to care proceedings issued in respect of 
170 children, consisting of 166 applications for Care Orders; and 4 for Supervision 
Orders.

The Panel was provided with background information relating to the changes to 
Judges during the last two years, which had resulted in an inconsistency of judiciary 
outcomes.  As a result of the changes, cases were now taking longer to process, and 
Lincolnshire had gone from being at the top of the Leader Board to now being ranked 
nineteenth.  The result was disappointing but legal services were working hard to turn 
things round.   It was highlighted that the Court was trying to appoint Judges with 
experience in family proceedings, so it was hoped that things would improve going 
forward, and that the authority would go back up the rankings.

It was also highlighted that a number of cases involved contacting other countries, to 
look into realistic options for permanent placements.  The Panel was advised that 
procedures were being reviewed in relation to these cases as other countries 
approached social care differently.  The Panel was further advised that this was a 
challenge that was growing.

During consideration of the report, reference was made to:-

 The number of final Orders granted by the Court for 2014/2015, which were 
detailed on page 16; and the post proceedings position for the local authority 
for 2014/2015;

 It was highlighted that the authority had appealed against a number of 
decisions, but appeals were a very expensive option for the authority;

 Some members of the Panel thought that training on how the legal system 
worked would help them understand the procedure better;

 The Panel was advised that 40% of cases now had an international element;
 A question was asked as to whether the authority was getting things right.  It 

was highlighted that the Court Service decided on the Care Plan and then 
Children's Services make sure that the plan is adhered to.  The best interests 
of the child being uppermost at all times; and

 A question was asked as to whether the Council could prevent a child being 
taken out of the Country?  The Panel was advised that if the Council 

Page 42



3
CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL

9 JUNE 2016

anticipated that the child would be at risk, then an Order could be sought to 
get the child back into local authority care.

It was highlighted that on 22 April 2014, the Public Law Outline was enshrined in law; 
and that the focus was now on the child's timetable and the need for urgent decisions 
regarding their future.  It was noted that all S31 Children Act 1989 proceedings had to 
be completed within 26 weeks (Except in exceptional circumstances).  It was 
reported that for 2014/2015, the timescale for proceedings was 23 weeks and that 
the average timescales for proceedings in 2015/16 was 26 weeks.  In exceptional 
circumstances, the Court had granted an extension of up to eight weeks.  Further 
details relating to Lincolnshire issues that had given rise to exceptional 
circumstances were detailed at the bottom of page 25 of the report.

The Panel also received an update pertaining to the Parental Substance Misuse 
Intervention Programme, which was to provide co-ordinated multi-agency services for 
parents whose children were at risk of removal from their families where one of the 
significant things is the effect of parental drug or alcohol misuse on the safety of 
children in the household.  The Panel was advised that a case was currently on going 
at the moment, and that a case study would be made of this, to see what can be 
done better.

RESOLVED

1. That the Legal Services Annual Report be noted.

2. That training on legal processes be arranged for members of the Panel.

5    COMPLIMENTS, COMMENTS & COMPLAINTS RECEIVED FROM 
LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN - ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

Consideration was given to a report from Tanya Marten (Customer Relations & 
Complaints Manager), which provided the Panel with performance indicators relating 
to Looked After Children for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016.  

It was reported that during the 12 month period there had been two complaints from 
children/young people in Lincolnshire County Council's care and two from young 
people who had left the Authority's care.  Details relating to the complaints 
/compliments received were explained within the report presented.

It was reported that it was encouraging to see that the number of formal complaints 
were being maintained at a similar level, and that the Looked After Service 
maintained its focus and commitment to dealing with and resolving complaints at an 
informal level.

During consideration of the report, the Panel made reference to the following issues:-

 One Panel member's experience from visiting Looked After Children, was that 
one issue that was always raised from a young person was where were their 
siblings; and the fact that they were not able to see their siblings as much as 

Page 43



4
CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL
9 JUNE 2016

they would like.  Another issue raised was that the young person was not able 
to see their social worker as much as they would like; 

 A further question asked was if a young person was unhappy with their social 
worker, were they aware of the process available to them to seek help.  
Officers advised that from the Tell Us Survey, some young people were still 
not aware of the Advocacy Service, and as a result more work needed to be 
done to make sure all Looked After Children were aware of the service 
available to them.  The Panel noted that some very positive feedback had 
been received with regard to social workers; however some comments raised 
had been that they wanted the social worker to get back to them quicker on 
some occasions.  It was highlighted that social workers were not expected to 
be on call 24 hours a day.  If a young person did have a problem there was 
also an emergency out of hour's number available for them to call.  All young 
people had the Advocacy number, but as mentioned previously this needed to 
be promoted better.  Reassurance was given that the Advocacy Service was 
promoted, but that it appeared that there was a small cohort of young people 
who had not taken on board the message, it was felt that possibly some of 
these could be new Looked After Children.  The Panel was advised further 
that Advocacy was provided by Barnardo's and it was suggested that a report 
regarding this issue could be presented to a future meeting of the Panel; and

 That in relation to Complaint 3, Officers agreed to provide an update at a later 
date.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

6    PERFORMANCE - QUARTER 4 FULL REPORT

A joint presentation was received from Tara Jones, (Children's Service Manager – 
Regulated South and Adoption), John Harris (Children's Services Manager – 
Regulated North and Fostering), Yvonne Shearwood (Quality and Standards 
Manager) and Kieran Barnes (Head of Virtual School Looked After Children) 
concerning performance indicators relating to Looked After Children.

Officers provided the Panel with an update on the following indicators:-

 Stability of Placements of Looked After Children: length of placement -The 
Panel noted that the service continued to monitor stable placements to ensure 
that any risks to placements were identified and appropriate support was 
made available to foster carers. It was noted further that the fostering/adoption 
of Looked After Children aged 10 to 16; and Stability of Placements of Looked 
After Children: number of moves; and Care Leavers in suitable employment, 
education and training measure were all within tolerance;

 Looked After Children reviews within timescale and Participation of Looked 
After Children in reviews – The Panel noted that measures were within 
tolerance;

Page 44



5
CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL

9 JUNE 2016

 Percentage of Looked After Children with an up-to-date health check; 
Percentage of Looked After Children with an up-to-date dental check; and 
Percentage of Looked After Children with an up-to-date immunisations.  All 
three indicators were within tolerance.  It was noted further that Looked After 
Children nurses were conducting reviews, which had reduced the number of 
refusals;

 Looked After Children reaching Level 4 in Maths at Key Stage 2; and Level 4 
in Writing at Key Stage 2; and Looked After Children with a Personal 
Education Plan were within tolerance.  Looked After Children reaching Level 4 
in Reading at Key Stage 2 – The Panel was advised although the Virtual 
School had introduced a programme of Literacy assessment, intervention and 
support through the Specialist Teacher Team it was difficult at this time to 
ascertain as to whether this had had a positive impact on outcomes;

 Looked After Children achieving A*-C GCSEs in English and Maths – It was 
reported that performance for 2014/2015 was down from 15% in the previous 
year.  It was highlighted that the key targeted group of 12 students for 2015, 
only five had achieved a C or above in both English and Maths.  It was 
acknowledged that the attainment was unacceptable; and that the Virtual 
School was continuing to support and challenge all schools to provide high 
quality teaching and learning support to Looked After Children to improve 
performance.  It was highlighted that attainment results were very dependent 
on the make-up of the cohort of Looked After Children;

 16 – 18 year old Looked After Children who are participating in learning – The 
Panel was advised that further development of the post - 16 personal 
development plan had seen compliance rates above 90%, for the first time in 
April 2016; and

 Care Leavers in suitable accommodation – It was reported that performance 
continued to show improvement.  It was reported further that there were five 
young people for whom the leaving care service was attempting to address the 
suitability of accommodation; and that two young people were in the process 
of securing suitable housing.

During discussion, the Panel raised the following issues:-

 Concern was expressed at the lack of achievement of Looked After Children 
achieving A* – C in English and maths and whether any additional support 
was needed.  The Panel was advised that the Virtual School had put 
measures in place to support Looked After Children, which included identifying 
cases where academic progress was below expectation and working with 
schools and providers; referring schools causing concern to Ofsted, Regional 
School Commissioner, Secretary of State as appropriate; set academic targets 
within the ePEP and review termly; and ensure that there was early 
intervention to avoid exclusion.  A suggestion was made for the Children and 
Young People Scrutiny Committee to set up a working group or task and finish 
group  to see what other Councils had in place to improve Key Stage 4 
attainment of Looked After Children;

 One member expressed concern regarding the stability of placements.  It was 
highlighted that the indicator had improved significantly since the previous 
year, which suggested an improvement in placement stability.  A suggestion 

Page 45



6
CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL
9 JUNE 2016

was made for the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee to consider 
the establishment of a working group to look into stability of placements.

RESOLVED

1. That the report be noted.

2. That the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee be asked to 
consider the establishment of two working groups to look into:-

 What other Councils had in place regarding Key Stage 4 attainment of 
Looked After Children; and

 The stability of placements for Looked After Children.

7    UNACCOMPANIED ASYLUM SEEKERS

The Panel gave consideration to a joint report from John Harris (Children's Service 
Manager Regulated – North and Fostering) and Yvonne Shearwood (Quality and 
Standards Manager), which provided information as to the process which was 
adopted for unaccompanied children arriving in the county.  The report also provided 
some information with regard to the countries of origin.

It was highlighted that the number of unaccompanied asylum seekers had risen 
recently, with Kent County Council having the largest influx.  The Panel was advised 
that all local authorities were encouraged to enter into a voluntary scheme to 
disperse unaccompanied asylum seekers throughout the country taking into 
consideration where any relatives were currently resident and existing migrant 
populations.  

It was noted that there was a national funding incentive from the Government 
available to local authorities entering into the scheme.

The report provided the Panel with information relating to the assessment process; 
actions following age assessments; details of the number of young people assessed 
and the age of young unaccompanied asylum seeking children 

It was highlighted that up to 31 March 2016, there had been 65 unaccompanied 
asylum seeking children, 42 of which had been over the age of 16.  The Panel was 
advised that where a young person was identified as being under 16 they would be 
placed within a foster home for such time as they reached their age of majority.  
When a young person was identified as being between 16 and 18, the young person 
would be placed in one of two semi-independent living arrangements.  It was noted 
that the young person would receive a small allowance, from which a small deduction 
was made for accommodation and utilities.  The young person would also be 
encouraged to attend colleges.  The young person would be looked after for the first 
13 weeks and subject to reviews, after the period of 13 weeks, the young person 
would then be transferred to the leaving care team who would continue to support the 
young person until they reached the age of 25.  The Panel was advised that the cost 
per year for an unaccompanied child was £50,000 and that the Council had a legal 

Page 46



7
CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL

9 JUNE 2016

and moral responsibility for any child coming into care.  It was highlighted that it was 
anticipated that government funding was going to be available for the next two to 
three years.

Officers advised that Lincolnshire's per head cost for Looked After Children was one 
of the lowest in the country at a cost of £697 per week.

Members extended their congratulations to officers for the terrific job they were doing.

One member requested further information concerning the outcomes of the 
unaccompanied asylum seekers that had come into Lincolnshire.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

8    VIRTUAL SCHOOL INTERIM REPORT

Consideration was given to a report from Kieran Barnes (Head of Virtual School - 
Looked After Children), which provided the Panel with an interim report for June 
2016.  The report briefly summarised academic outcomes for the Lincolnshire 
Children and Young People in care in 2015.  The report also focussed upon 
predictions for 2016 covering national changes relating to assessment including a 
focus on age related expected progress for the current cohort.

It was reported that the current predictions for early years was that 43% of reception 
early years cohort was expected to achieve a good level of development this year.  
The figure however would still be below the national average for children in care in 
the previous year which was 66%.  This would for the second year reflect a 
significant improvement in the achievements of the key group of learners having 
moved from 18% in 2014, to 32% in 2015.

For Key Stage 1, it was reported that 60% were expected to pass their phonics this 
year, last year this figure was reported to be 62%, and the national average for 
Children in Care was 53%.  It was highlighted for the new measure of "Age 
Expectations" no comparison information was available.  For 2016 the Age Related 
Expectation performance for 2016 was 52% Reading; 40% Writing; and 48% Maths.   
Work was being done to enhance engagement; performance and development 
through the Wellcom project.

The Panel noted that young people in the 6 - 14 age group all went through base line 
assessment with a base line teacher, and that progress was monitored up to Year 6.

This process was very similar for Year 7, where young people were not all at the 
same level, a review process was conducted and a specialist teacher then helped to 
fill in the gaps to bring the young person up to the same level.

Page 47



8
CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL
9 JUNE 2016

The Panel was reassured that intervention measures were in place, which included 
supporting schools through specialist teachers; academic targets set within the 
ePEP; early intervention to avoid exclusion; and engaging schools and providers.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

9    V4C THE LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN - 6 MONTHLY UPDATE AND 
QUARTERLY MINUTES

Consideration was given to the V4C six monthly update – May 2016; and Executive 
V4C minutes from the 15 March and 19 April 2016 meetings.

In the absence of Mary-Beth Pepperdine (Representative of the V4C Children in Care 
Council), Alison Poxon (Youth Hub Manager) guided the Panel through the report, 
making particular reference to:-

 Membership – The Panel was advised that the V4C Executive Group had 
increased to 13, and that three further enquiries had been received;

 V4C Active – It was noted that there had been 2 Active Events so far in 2016 
with five more events planned;

 V4C South - The Panel noted that the two meetings of the V4C South had 
been held; and that going forward the group would meet every two months;

 Big Conversation 9 – The Panel was advised that Looked After Children and 
Care Leavers were looking at Mental Health and Foster Care training. The 
group had talked about sign-posting and access to mental health services.  
One issue raised was the importance of having someone to talk to about low-
level mental health issues.  It was noted that the new website would be 
promoted through teams. With regard to foster care training, it had been 
agreed that members of the V4C Executive would be contributing to training 
both in person and by video;

 Other issues raised by the Big Conversation 9 included LGBT awareness; and 
bullying;

 FAB – The Panel was advised that the V4C Executive Group had been 
involved in the FAB Awards held on 5 March 2016, which had been a 
resounding success.  It was noted that planning had started on the 2017 
event; and

 Tell Us Surveys – It was noted following input from the group, the survey was 
being redesigned with revised questions and response options.

During discussion, it was agreed that a plan of future works would be available for the 
next meeting.

The V4C group were congratulated for their positive attitude in wanting to get 
involved and in making things better for Looked After Children.  It was agreed that 
representatives from the V4C should be used as educational mentors to other 
Looked After Children to see what can be achieved.

Page 48



9
CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL

9 JUNE 2016

RESOLVED

1. That the report be noted.

2. That a plan of future works be presented to the next Corporate Parenting 
Panel meeting.

3. That steps be taken to looking into getting representatives from the V4C to 
become educational mentors to other Looked After Children.

10    VISITING MEMBERS QUARTERLY REPORT

Consideration was given to a report from Tara Jones, (Children's Services Manager 
Regulated – South and Adoption), which provided a copy of the Visiting Members – 
Log of Quarterly Visits to Children's Homes April 2015 – March 2016.

Officers advised that the system of receiving Visiting Members logs was improving.

A suggestion was made for a reminder process to be put into operation.  Officers 
agreed to look into this matter.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

11    INDEPENDENT REVIEWING SERVICE SIX MONTHLY REPORT

The Panel gave consideration to the Independent Reviewing Service Six Monthly 
Report, which provided an overview on Looked After Children for the period between 
October 2015 and March 2016 from the perspective of the Independent Reviewing 
Service.

Yvonne Shearwood (Quality and Standards Manager) offered apologies that the 
report was not an annual one, but just covered a six month period from October 2015 
to March 2016.

In guiding the Panel through the report particular reference was made to:-

 The Lincolnshire Independent Reviewing Service;
 Qualitative information about the Independent Reviewing Service – Particular 

reference was made to Tell Us Survey, which provided feedback from children 
and young people on their perception of their Independent Reviewing Officer;

 That a pledge was being developed from the Independent Reviewing Service 
to 'Looked-After' Children to ensure that there are clear expectations; and

 That work would continue to ensure that the voice of the child informed 
practice and service provision.

During discussion, the Panel raised the following issues:-

Page 49



10
CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL
9 JUNE 2016

 The participation rates of young people in their reviews – The Panel was 
advised that the process to get young people involved had been slow; and that 
more work was being done to get young people to acknowledge that the 
review meetings were their meetings to talk about their personal development 
plan.  It was noted that a piece of work was being carried out with a number of 
young people to develop a review meeting model, which would be more akin 
to the Sheffield model.  It was noted further that this was being piloted with a 
small number of meetings.  The Panel was advised that positive feedback had 
been received and that this method would be used more widely over the next 
few months; and

 The Tell Us survey – It was noted that the survey had also provided feedback 
in terms of children and young people's views of their Independent Reviewing 
Officer.  The Panel was advised that the forms had indicated that there were 
still too many young people who were not aware of who their Independent 
Reviewing Officer was.  The Panel was reassured that more work would be 
done in this area over the next twelve months.

RESOLVED

That the annual report be noted.

12    ADOPTION SERVICE - 6 MONTHLY UPDATE

The Panel gave consideration to a report from Tara Jones, (Children's Services 
Manager Regulated – South and Adoption), which provided an update on the 
adoption service.  Appendix A to the report presented detailed performance 
information, panel activity and key developments within the service over the last six 
months.  

It was highlighted that the new Adoption Support Fund had been rolled out to all local 
authorities.  The fund offered a fast, simple service for local authorities to apply to, 
which meant that adoptive families could access the support they needed, as and 
when the needed it. 

Reference was also made to the East Midlands Adoption Consortium which had 
submitted a successful bid for government development funding to progress plans for 
an adoption agency to bring together four local authorities, three unitary authorities 
and two voluntary agencies into a new regional adoption agency, across the East 
Midlands area.  The Panel was advised that Lincolnshire was a member of the 
Consortium and was supporting the development of the project.

It was noted that Lincolnshire was taking the lead with regard to the re-organisational 
opportunities, and that in doing so would ensure that the project worked for the East 
Midlands.  One member expressed the need to maintain local input into the process.  
The Panel was advised that work was being undertaken to scope out best practice 
across the country.

RESOLVED

Page 50



11
CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL

9 JUNE 2016

That the report be noted.

13    REGULATION 44 REPORTS - 6 MONTHLY SUMMARY OF 
INDEPENDENT VISITING SERVICE

Consideration was given to a report from Ildiko Kiss (Regulation 43 Visitor), which 
provided the Panel with a six monthly update on the work of the Independent Visitor.

The Regulation 43 Visitor advised that during the last six months each residential 
home had had their challenges, but all homes were making a great effort to maintain 
a high standard of care to young people.  The Panel was advised that the children 
and young people living in the County Council children's homes continued to receive 
a good standard of care.  Staff at the homes worked very closely with other 
professionals in order to maintain the high standards.

The Panel was advised that Albion Street had received a 'Requires Improvement' 
grading.  Following the development of a robust plan of action the interim inspection 
had found Albion Street had improved in effectiveness.  It was noted that staff morale 
had been low, but it was hoped with the appointment of a new manager, this would 
now improve.

It was reported that the reporting format had been further developed to incorporate 
the expectations from Ofsted.  Also, there was a signs of safety summary at the end 
of the report, which allowed for a greater focus on significant areas of concern and 
actions required.  It was also highlighted that there was an expectation that the 
Independent Visitor would seek views from parents of children living in the homes 
and other professionals involved in their care.

During a short discussion, some concern was raised with regard to times when 
children had gone missing.  Officers advised that the homes had a very good 
relationship with the police and that communication channels were always two ways.

A further concern was raised with regard to the Advocates from Barnardo's and to the 
fact that the service was still being developed.  The Panel noted that it was 
envisaged that the service would ensure that the feedback from the young people 
was fed back to the staff in the home.  

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

14    CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17

The Panel gave consideration to a report, which invited the Corporate Parenting 
Panel to discuss and agree its work programme for 2016.

A copy of the work programme was appended to the report at Appendix A.

Page 51



12
CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL
9 JUNE 2016

The Senior Scrutiny Officer agreed to email the V4C Executive Meeting dates to all 
members of the Panel, so that Panel members could advise which date(s) would be 
suitable for them to attend a meeting.

RESOLVED

That the work programme as detailed in Appendix A to the report presented be 
agreed.

The meeting closed at 12.55 pm.

Page 52



   

Policy and Scrutiny 

Open Report on behalf of Debbie Barnes, Executive Director of Children's 
Services 

 

Report to: Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 15 July 2016 

Subject: Early Years Service Model and Commissioning Plan 
and Contractual Arrangements for Children's Health 
Services  

 

Summary:  

This report invites the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee to 
consider a report on the Early Years Service Model and Commissioning Plan 
and Contractual Arrangements for Children's Health Services which is due to be 
considered by the Executive Councillor responsible for Children's Services on 
29 July 2016. The views of the Scrutiny Committee will be reported to the 
Executive Councillor as part of her consideration of this item. 
 
 

Actions Required: 

(1) To consider the attached report and to determine whether the Committee 
supports the recommendation(s) to the Executive Councillor responsible 
for Children's Services as set out in the report.   

 
(2) To agree any additional comments to be passed to the Executive 

Councillor responsible for Children's Services in relation to this item. 
 

 
1. Background
 
The Executive Councillor responsible for Children's Services is due to consider a 
report on the Early Years Service Model and Commissioning Plan and Contractual 
Arrangements for Children's Health Services. The full report to the Executive 
Councillor is attached at Appendix 1 to this report. 
 
2. Conclusion
 
Following consideration of the attached report, the Committee is requested to 
consider whether it supports the recommendation(s) in the report and whether it 
wishes to make any additional comments to the Executive Councillor. The 
Committee’s views will be reported to the Executive Councillor.   
 
 
 

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



3. Consultation 
 

 
 

 
 

a) Policy Proofing Actions Required  
 

Not applicable 
 

 
4. Appendices 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report. 

Appendix 1 Report and Appendices to the Executive Councillor responsible 
for Children's Services on Early Years Service Model and 
Commissioning Plan and Contractual Arrangements for Children's 
Health Services 

 
 

5. Background Papers 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
 
This report was written by Charlotte Gray, who can be contacted on 01522 553783 
or charlotte.gray@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 

Page 54

mailto:charlotte.gray@lincolnshire.gov.uk


Report Reference:  
Executive/Executive Councillor

Open Report on behalf of Debbie Barnes, Executive Director of Children's 
Services

Report to: Councillor Mrs P A Bradwell, Executive Councillor 
responsible for Children's Services

Date: 29 July 2016

Subject: Early Years Service Model and Commissioning Plan 
and Contractual Arrangements for Children's Health 
Services 

Decision Reference: I011705

Key decision? Yes 

Summary: 
Children’s Strategic Commissioning Service is reviewing early years and 
children’s health services that are currently outsourced, further details of which 
can be found in the background section of this report. Expenditure on these 
services in 2016/17 is £13,998,367. A savings target of £450,000 in 2017/18 
has been set although further savings are being sought where possible. 

The findings of the review to date and options for future service models have 
been presented to a variety of boards and groups (Children’s Services 
Executive Directorate Management Team, Corporate Management Board, 
Women and Children’s Board and a Members working group with 
representatives invited from both Children and Young People and Health 
Scrutiny Committees). A preferred model for new services was provisionally 
agreed. Further public engagement, via an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
questionnaire, is taking place to understand any positive or negative impacts 
the preferred model may have and following this due consideration will be given 
to any further changes that may be needed. As well as the final service model, 
the commissioning route for new services also needs to be agreed. 

Early years and children’s health services are currently commissioned 
separately and the preferred model continues to uphold this. Changes to the 
preferred early years service model are not significant but current contractual 
arrangements are due to cease on 31st March 2017, with few options to extend. 
In order to establish the new early years service by 1st April 2017 and 
consequently meet the savings target in 2017/18, a decision is sought from the 
Executive Councillor responsible for Children’s Services at this time to agree 
the final service model and preferred commissioning route. 

Page 55



In October 2016, the Council’s Executive will be asked to agree the final service 
model and commissioning route separately for children’s health services. Given 
the greater extent of changes, this is to allow sufficient time to undertake in-
depth research into commissioning options and provide Members with detailed 
information from which to make their decisions. The current contractual 
arrangement is due to cease on 31st March 2017 with an option to extend to 30th 
September 2017. Pending agreement of the final model and commissioning 
route in October 2016, this would mean the re-commissioning of the new 
service could commence in January 2017 at the earliest. Given the complexity 
of the service and extent of changes the Council may realistically need to 
extend the current contractual arrangement up to 31st March 2018 to ensure 
enough time for a smooth implementation. A decision is sought from the 
Executive Councillor responsible for Children’s Services at this time to extend 
the current Section 75 Agreement with Lincolnshire Community Health Services 
NHS Trust (LCHS) up to 31st March 2018.

Recommendation(s):
That the Executive Councillor responsible for Children’s Services:

1  Approves the final model for the early years service set out at Appendix A 
Section 3.

2  Approves that the new early years service including bi-lingual support is 
commissioned through re-procurement by means of an open competitive 
tender.

3  Approves an extension to the current Section 75 agreement with Lincolnshire 
Community Health Services NHS Trust (LCHS) for Health Visiting, School 
Nursing, Antenatal Weight Management and Family Nurse Partnership up to 
31st March 2018.

4 Delegates the Director of Children’s Services, in consultation with the 
Executive Councillor responsible for Children’s Services, the authority to 
agree to any further changes to the early years service model that may be 
required as a result of findings from the EIA and authority to take all steps 
and make all decisions necessary to give effect to paragraphs 1 to 3 above 
including determining the form and content and approving the entering into of 
all necessary legal documentation.

Alternatives Considered:

1. Decide on a different model for the early years service and/or not delegate 
the Director of Children’s Services, in consultation with the Executive 
Councillor responsible for Children’s Services, the authority to agree to 
any further changes to the early years service model that may be required 
as a result of findings from the EIA.

Page 56



The recommended model is based on review findings and is in line with 
the views of various Boards. Not agreeing to the model or changing the 
model risks altering/removing services where there is a clear rationale for 
needing them. If any changes are legitimately needed not agreeing for the 
delegated authority to make these changes will delay new services being 
in place and thus savings being realised.

2. To agree another commissioning option for the new early years service.

It is believed re-procurement by means of an open competitive tender is 
the best approach to securing value for money services from experienced 
providers that services users will engage with. Other commissioning 
options would not achieve this as successfully.

3. To allow the current Section 75 agreement with Lincolnshire Community 
Health Services NHS Trust (LCHS) for Health Visiting, School Nursing, 
Antenatal Weight Management and Family Nurse Partnership to end on 
31st March 2017.
 
It is believed this would not be desirable and it would expose the Council 
to a number of risks if new services were not able to be implemented in 
time.

Reasons for Recommendation:
• The final model for the early years service set out at Appendix A was 

developed taking into account review findings and engagement feedback 
from the public and professionals. Further model options have already been 
explored with a variety of boards and the final model is deemed to provide 
the best offer to families within available resources. 

• Further changes to the final model resulting from feedback via the EIA 
questionnaire, are likely to be minor because the model does not propose 
significant changes that would have a negative impact on service users. For 
this reason, it is requested that the Director of Children’s Services, in 
consultation with the Executive Councillor responsible for Children’s 
Services, can approve any further changes to the preferred model 
particularly as these decisions can be taken in a timely manner to allow for 
commissioning to commence by September 2016. 

• The external provider market for early years services has been tested 
previously with a good level of interest. It is felt the market has the skills to 
deliver the new service successfully and to provide value for money. There 
are no significant benefits to the Council providing these services at this 
time. For these reasons it is recommended to commission the new early 
years service through re-procurement by means of an open competitive 
tender. 

• An extension to the current Section 75 Agreement with LCHS up to 31st 
March 2018 will allow sufficient time to ensure new children’s health services 
can be implemented smoothly minimising the risk of disruption to service 
users. The final model and commissioning route will not be agreed until 
October 2016 and so if the service was to be re-procured by means of an 
open competitive tender for example, this would not commence until 

Page 57



January 2017. Following contract award this would only leave 6 months to 
implement a new complex service with a number of changes, which is a risk 
to services users and the Council. An extension would allow the Council the 
option to take further time to manage implementation successfully.

1. Background

The Council’s Children’s Services Directorate has the lead commissioning function 
for the services set out below, all of which are being reviewed:

Services Service Category
 Health Visiting
 Family Nurse Partnership
 Antenatal Weight Management
 School Nursing

Health 
£11,279,040 (16/17)

 Early Years Service for Children’s Centre Communities
 Locality Services - Participation and Engagement
 Locality Services - Crèche 
 Locality Services - Skills Development
 Locality Services - Adult Learning
 Locality Services - Bi-lingual support
 Locality Services- additional commissioning
 Locality Services- Witham Family Centre

Early Years
£2,719,327 (16/17)

These services cover a broad range of health and early childhood based support 
for children and young people aged 0-19 and their families. The new collective 
commissioning of services through Children's Services provides an opportunity to 
review current service provision holistically for the first time and to re-shape 
services as required. The financial challenge that the Council faces also means 
that achieving savings is a priority whilst still improving services. The requirements 
of the review are as follows:

 To understand what type of services families in Lincolnshire need to help their 
children have the best start in early life, be ready for school and continue to 
lead happy and healthy lives in preparation for adulthood.

 To agree what support all families should be entitled to and what support only 
certain families should receive based on their particular needs and then re-
design services accordingly.

 To ensure any re-designed services comply with statutory responsibilities and 
also offer best practice within available resources.

 To identify interdependencies with other services outside of the scope of the 
review and work with other stakeholders to ensure clear inter-linking pathways 
are established.

 To establish greater integration of services by ending duplication of support, co-
locating services, sharing information, sharing costs and joint case working.

 To ensure best use of staffing, financial and building resources and where cost 
savings can be identified consider if any re-investment is needed. 

 To make it clearer to families how to access the support they need.

Page 58



 To decide who is best placed to deliver any services e.g. Local Authority, health 
provider, outsourced.

 To encourage a rich market place of health and social care service providers in 
Lincolnshire from who services can be commissioned using clear contracting 
arrangements.

The strategic outcomes the services will support are:

 Joint Health and Well-being Strategy for Lincolnshire 2013-2018:
o Theme: Improve health and social outcomes for children and reduce 

inequalities
o Outcome: Ensure all children get the best possible start in life and 

achieve their potential
 Lincolnshire Children and Young People’s Plan 2013-2016:

o Children and Young People are healthy and safe.
o Children and Young People develop their potential in their early years 

and are ready for school.

Appendix A - Section 2 sets out a summary of review findings to date in relation to 
early years services including:

 Statutory duties
 Needs summary
 Engagement results
 Evidence

Early Years Service Current Commissioning

The current combined annual expenditure for services in the early years category 
of the review in 2016/17 is £2,719,327. It is proposed that just under £2m p/a is 
required to deliver the new early years service model.

The Early Years Service for Children’s Centre Communities contract, currently 
delivered by CfBT Education Trust (CfBT) and run through children's centres, is 
due to end 31 March 2017 (a further 12 month extension can be invoked). The 
service provides activities in 47 children’s centres across Lincolnshire with the main 
aim of facilitating child development and ensuring school readiness underpinned by 
Early Years Foundation Stage principles. The service provides Parenting Early 
Education Programme (PEEP) Activities and locally tailored PEEP Plus Activities 
primarily for children aged 0-5 and their families, with the expectation that a 
minimum of 6 families attend each session. There is an emphasis on engaging 
vulnerable families. 

There are also 28 Locality Service contracts due to end 31 March 2017 with no 
contractual option to extend. These are delivered by 6 different providers 
(Children’s Links, Lincolnshire Pre-School Learning Alliance (PLA), PAB 
Translation, Priory Witham Academy, The Learning Curve and the Council’s 
Learning and Development Team):

Page 59



 Participation and Engagement services (Children’s Links and PLA) engage 
children under 5 years old and their families to increase registration and 
participation in children’s centres services, with a focus on the most vulnerable. 
This can be delivered through home visiting, first steps groups that should 
transition families into PEEP and PEEP Plus sessions, pop up events, work 
with existing community groups and holiday activities. 

 Bi-lingual Support services (PAB Translation) in Boston, South Holland and 
Lincoln promote children’s centre services to ethnic minority families as well as 
other services and encourage the take up of 2 year old childcare funding. 
Delivery includes running events for ethnic minority families, home visits and 
supporting families with translation to understand processes such as Team 
Around the Child, Child In Need and Child Protection.  

 Skills Development services (PLA and The Learning Curve) support parents 
and carers of children aged under 5 years old into learning, volunteering, 
apprenticeships and employment, with a focus on the most vulnerable. Delivery 
includes recruitment of participants, building links with learning providers, Job 
Centre Plus and volunteering providers and then tracking progress.

 Adult Learning services (Council's Learning and Development team) work with 
parents in children's centre reach areas to provide good quality adult learning 
opportunities and support them into volunteering or paid employment. 

 Crèche services (PLA) are provided whilst parents attend activities such as 
training, parenting programmes and employment preparation. Delivery includes 
offering play and learning activities during sessions. In some parts of the county 
crèche services are spot purchased as required.

 Witham Family Centre (Priory Witham Academy) has been the only children’s 
centre in Lincolnshire not managed by the Council. The service includes 
participation and engagement, skills development, adult learning and crèche. 
The Council received a contractual notice from the service provider and a 
decision was taken that the Council would also pick up the management of this 
centre from 1st September 2016. As such, commissioned services must include 
an offer to children and families who access the Witham Family Centre. 

 Locality teams undertake additional commissioning for any services that their 
local area may particularly need throughout the year.

Further information on current services is in Appendix A - Section 1.

Preferred Early Years Service Model

Appendix A - Section 3 sets out the preferred service model for early years 
services which the Executive Councillor responsible for Children’s Services is 
asked to formally agree. A brief overview is set out below:

The model for early years services is heavily focussed on working alongside health 
to identify women that are pregnant as early as possible and provide integrated 
antenatal support alongside health, to women and their partner/network to help 
them prepare for parenting. The service will make available lots of support to all 
families during the first year of a child’s life, in particular for vulnerable families. 
Sessions will be high quality and evidence based but also tailored to meet the 
needs of vulnerable individuals that may feel overwhelmed by attending structured 
group sessions; thus there will be flexibility to run sessions at outreach venues, 

Page 60



including the home. Having consistent teams of workers in locality areas will be 
important in helping vulnerable families to have known and friendly faces that they 
can turn to with concerns. Families will see the same professionals for their 
antenatal support, activities with their children, their skills development courses 
and crèche so they will feel that consistent professionals are part of their family’s 
journey. As children get older sessions will focus on supporting them to be ready to 
learn and for those children that are still attending sessions after age 3, being 
ready for school.  

The preferred model is based on commissioning a single early years service 
combining elements of current Locality services and Early Years Services in 
Children's Centre Communities together, with the exception of bi-lingual support 
due to specialisms required. There are a number of benefits to this:

 All of the services are already working with the same age group in/around 
children’s centres and so there is a lot of synergy across services already.

 Families will have to engage with fewer professionals from different 
organisations and instead will receive holistic support in their locality area. This 
will enhance the locality team approach where families have a known team 
around them from antenatal support, early years sessions with their children to 
skills development support to aid them into education, employment or training.

 Instead of paying for numerous overhead, management, estate and other costs 
efficiencies are likely to be found through a single approach that could be then 
reinvested back into front line service delivery.

 All staff will be trained to the same standard and there will be a greater 
consistency across the county between services and their quality.

 Increased reliability of service delivery, particularly in more rural areas, resulting 
from staff being able to be deployed across the county to cover recruitment 
issues/sickness absence. 

 
Commissioning Options

The options considered for the commissioning of early years services including bi-
lingual support were:

a) Do nothing- this means continuing with current contractual arrangements and 
not altering services or funding.

b) Decommissioning- this means not commissioning any services beyond 
existing contracts and that services would effectively cease.

c) Influencing/Partnership- this means not commissioning any services beyond 
existing contracts but working with other agencies to try secure the continuation 
of services through them acting either as a commissioner/co-commissioner or 
provider/co-provider. 

d) Insourcing- this means bringing the services within the Council with staff 
potentially being subject to TUPE rights and then being employed and managed 
by the Council.

e) Re-procurement- by means of an open competitive tender- this means going 
out to the market, by means of a competitive tender process, with the intention 
of continuing to outsource the service to meet the requirements of service 
users.

Page 61



a) Do Nothing
Current contractual arrangements for all Locality Services will end on 31st March 
2017 with no option to extend further. The existing Early Years Services for 
Children’s Centre Communities contract will end on 31st March 2017 but there is an 
option to extend the agreement by a further 12 months. Doing nothing would mean 
contracts would expire and so at the very least an extension to current services 
would be needed with an exception to the Council’s Contract and Procurement 
Procedure Rules required for all Locality services. Any extensions would be on the 
current terms and conditions and would not realise any savings or make service 
improvements which the review has identified are needed. This is not a legitimate 
option for consideration. 

b) Decommissioning
The services commissioned support the Council in fulfilling its statutory duty under 
section 3(2) of the Childcare Act 2006 (see Appendix A for further detail of 
statutory duties). The Council does not have a specific duty to commission the 
exact services that are being reviewed although they are very clearly early 
childhood services. If services were to be decommissioned the Council would have 
a duty to consult on this, with the very likely impact being significant reputational 
damage and public opposition. There would also be a risk of legal challenge with 
the Council needing to be very clear about the early childhood services it is 
securing locally to meet its statutory obligations. 

Decommissioning is not recommended because there is strongly evidence that 
offering support services in very early childhood, particularly for vulnerable families, 
can help improve parenting which in turn is vital for a child’s brain development and 
their later life chances. If a child’s development falls behind within the first year of 
their life that they are more likely to fall even further behind in subsequent years.  

There are no benefits to children and families in Lincolnshire of totally de-
commissioning these services and the likely result would mean the most vulnerable 
families would not be identified quickly and supported with problems and this would 
have a negative impact on their children’s development and place increasing 
pressure on Early Help and Social Care teams. 

c) Influencing/Partnership
There is no requirement for any organisation, other than the Council, to 
commission or provide these services. The responsibility for commissioning clearly 
lies with the Council. Commercial aspects of the service cannot be delivered 
without funding and it is not feasible to think that these services could be delivered 
through influence/partnership alone. Part of the preferred model seeks to 
influence/work together with children’s health services, childcare settings and 
others to ensure that services dovetail successfully. This is not a legitimate option 
for consideration.

d) Insourcing
It is legally possible for the Council to provide the early years service. There would 
undoubtedly be some implications under Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of 
Employment) (TUPE). Staff could be employed on their existing terms and 

Page 62



conditions but the Council would have to offer access to the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS) which would make it more expensive to employ them. 
The result would be less funding available for services. It would also limit the 
Council’s ability to outsource services again at a later date because many 
providers may be put off bidding if they need to offer a comparable pension 
scheme to LGPS for transferring employees. Existing providers already work well 
with the Council’s locality teams and so benefits of integration if these services 
were to be insourced are fairly limited. Current providers do not charge excessive 
management and overhead costs and so the Council would not be able to achieve 
significantly more savings by providing the services themselves. The Council is 
also likely to incur further premises costs because desk space in many locality 
areas is already limited. The Council does not currently provide any bi-lingual 
support services and arguably would be reliant on transferring staff to provide the 
expertise needed. Anecdotally, vulnerable families report that they like to engage 
with non-Social Care providers for these services.

Benefits:
 Greater budget control.
 Greater control and flexibility over service delivery.
 Greater oversight of service performance.
 More scope to integrate with other services e.g. Early Help.

Dis-benefits
 There is a strong early years market of providers that would lose business. The 

destabilisation of early years market providers may be possible resulting in their 
potential closure and the loss of other non-council funded services.

 Increased staffing costs are likely due to needing to give transferring 
employees’ access to LGPS which will mean future outsourcing options are 
restricted.

 The Council is more likely to receive negative media attention caused by the 
public perception that the service is now a social care service which may impact 
on engagement- most likely of vulnerable families.

 The Council is not an experienced provider of bi-lingual support services and 
would need to rely on any transferring staff or newly recruited staff to establish 
a service.

e) Re-procurement
As part of the service review, a number of other Local Authorities were contacted 
to establish their commissioning arrangements for delivery of early years and 
children’s health services. It was evident that most Local Authorities are also 
undergoing a review of their services as a result of the commissioning transfer of 
public health services for 0-5 year olds. Conversations at regional events indicate 
that most authorities are in a similar position with timescales to Lincolnshire thus 
making it difficult to identify existing models of best practice. 

Some areas have combined early years and children’s health services into one 
large contract in order to generate greater market interest. The implications of this 
are that health providers are invariably best placed to win contracts over early 
years providers because they can more easily offer Care Quality Commission 
registration, NHS terms and conditions and a comparable pension schemes. 

Page 63



Brighton is an example of this approach. Feedback suggested the health services 
have thrived but the early years services have struggled to reach the same 
standard. In Lincolnshire there is a strong early years market that has been tested 
and in order to ensure high quality across all services it is recommended to 
separately commission early years and health services.

Lincolnshire’s market of early years providers is strong and competitive. In 2012, 
the Early Years Services in Children’s Centre Communities was procured through 
an open competitive tender exercise based on a maximum 5 years contract. 8 bids 
were received, all from organisations that already operated in Lincolnshire and the 
majority also operated nationally too. Any opportunity for this market to bid again 
on a higher value/longer term contract is very likely to attract a similar number of 
bids.

The same market responded differently for Locality Services commissioning 
though. The Council’s ability to agree budgets for more than one year 
consecutively has been very limited over recent years. For Locality Services 
commissioning this has resulted in short term contracts being awarded with annual 
procurement exercises being undertaken once budgets have been agreed. It is 
evident from this that the market is less inclined to bid; for 2015/16 contracts for 
example, only 1 contract had more than 2 bidders. Short term contracts have also 
not made bidding appealing for new entrants to the market. 

Any procured contract will be considered high value and long term (recommended 
maximum of 5 years) which should generate more interest from the existing market 
and new entrants thus providing more options from which the Council can select. 
The scale of the contract shouldn't preclude small medium enterprises from being 
able to bid and may encourage consortium bids. 

Benefits:
 Continue to support an experienced market that can also attract funding from 

outside of the Council and thus strengthen Lincolnshire’s economy.
 Clear understanding of how funding is being used as a result of providers being 

required to submit a detailed budget breakdown during the tender process and 
also required to provide regular detailed financial reporting.

 Staffing costs will remain comparable instead of increasing if in-sourcing was 
agreed.

 Reduced likelihood of negative media attention.
 Reduced likelihood of poor public perception that services are now run by social 

care.

Dis-benefits
 Reduced direct control of budget, performance and flexibility over service 

delivery. 

Children’s Health Services

Commissioning of Local Authority public health services for 5 to 19 year-olds (up to 
25 for young people with Special Educational Needs - SEND) was delegated from 
Public Health to Children's Services from 1 April 2015 (all except the sexual health 

Page 64



service).  NHS England delegated commissioning of public health services for 0 to 
5 year olds to Local Authorities on 1 October 2015. 

In February 2016, the Council’s Executive approved entering into an agreement 
under Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006 for exercise by LCHS to include Health 
Visiting, School Nursing, Ante-natal Weight Management and Family Nurse 
Partnership services. The Director of Children’s Services, in consultation with the 
Executive Councillor responsible for Children’s Services, was delegated the 
authority to determine the form and content of the agreement and approve the 
entering into of all legal documentation. The Children and Young People Scrutiny 
Committee at its meeting in January 2016 supported these recommendations. The 
Section 75 agreement is due to end 31st March 2017 with an option to extend for a 
further 6 months. Current annual expenditure for 2016/17 is £11,279,040.

The new preferred service model for children’s health services includes a number 
of changes to existing services and implementing these changes successfully will 
take time. The commissioning of these services also has a number of complexities 
and requires a significant amount of research to provide Members with sufficient 
information to make an informed decision. To this end, the Council’s Executive will 
be asked to approve the model and commissioning route for children’s health 
services in October 2016 following consideration by the Children and Young 
People Scrutiny Committee in September 2016. 

It is the opinion of Children’s Strategic Commissioning that to have new children’s 
health services operational by 1st October 2017 (when the Section 75 agreement 
with LCHS can currently be extended to) may not be achievable, particularly if 
services are to be delivered by a new provider. The services are provided to all 
children and young people aged 0-19 (25 with SEND) and there are huge risks to 
the Council if new services are not implemented in time, particularly to our most 
vulnerable families. The ability to further extend the Section 75 agreement with 
LCHS to 31st March 2018 is sought to mitigate this risk, although extensions would 
only be invoked if needed. This would enable current provision to continue lawfully 
whilst the Council commissions and implements new services. A Section 75 
agreement is not a contract for services and therefore not covered by the Public 
Contracts Regulation 2015. The total maximum value of the Section 75 agreement 
would increase from £16,918,560 to £22,558,080.

The comments in relation to the statutory preconditions for establishing a Section 
75 agreement in the report of 2nd February 2016 to the Council's Executive remain 
valid.

Equality Act 2010

The Council must comply with the public sector equality duty set out in S149 
Equality Act 2010 when coming to a decision on the proposals. In doing so, the 
Executive Councillor as decision-maker must have due regard to the needs to:
 Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 

that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010; 
 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 

Page 65

https://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/runRemoteLink.do?langcountry=GB&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%252010_15a_Title%25&risb=21_T11624841281&bct=A&service=citation&A=0.4026760067779367


 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it: Equality Act 2010 section 
149(1). The relevant protected characteristics are age; disability; gender 
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual 
orientation: section 149(7).

Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity involves having 
due regard, in particular, to the need to:
 Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a 

relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
 Take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share 
it;

 Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionately low. 

The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different from 
the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to take 
account of disabled persons' disabilities.

Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who share 
a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having 
due regard, in particular, to the need to tackle prejudice, and promote 
understanding.

Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons more 
favourably than others.

A reference to conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act includes a reference 
to:

(a)     A breach of an equality clause or rule
(b)     A breach of a non-discrimination rule

It is important that the Executive Councillor is aware of the special duties the 
Council owes to persons who have a protected characteristic as the duty cannot be 
delegated and must be discharged by the Executive. The duty applies to all 
decisions taken by public bodies including policy decisions and decisions on 
individual cases and includes this decision. 

To discharge the statutory duty the Executive Councillor must analyse all the 
relevant material with the specific statutory obligations in mind.  If a risk of adverse 
impact is identified consideration must be given to measures to avoid that impact 
as part of the decision making process. 

An initial desktop Equality Impact Assessment has been completed and is attached 
at Appendix B; this is a live document and continues to be updated. This 
assessment identifies that there are no specific impacts on those with protected 
characteristics based on the proposed new Early Years service. This reflects the 
fact no significant changes have been made to services. A questionnaire is 
currently out for public engagement to identify if there are any positive or negative 

Page 66

https://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/runRemoteLink.do?langcountry=GB&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23section%25149%25sect%25149%25num%252010_15a%25&risb=21_T11624841281&bct=A&service=citation&A=0.8213227680330027
https://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/runRemoteLink.do?langcountry=GB&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23section%25149%25sect%25149%25num%252010_15a%25&risb=21_T11624841281&bct=A&service=citation&A=0.8213227680330027


impacts that have not been identified. The feedback from this engagement 
exercise is not available at the time that this report is published but will be reported 
to the Executive Councillor prior to her reaching a decision and in any event 
delegation has been sought in this report for the results and any potential changes 
to be taken into account accordingly. 

Child Poverty Strategy

The Council is under a duty in the exercise of its functions to have regard to its 
Child Poverty Strategy.  Child poverty is one of the key risk factors that can 
negatively influence a child’s life chances. Children that live in poverty are at 
greater risk of social exclusion which, in turn, can lead to poor outcomes for the 
individual and for society as a whole.

In Lincolnshire we consider that poverty is not only a matter of having limited 
financial resources but that it is also about the ability of families to access the 
means of lifting themselves out of poverty and of having the aspiration to do so. 
The following four key strategic themes form the basis of Lincolnshire’s Child 
Poverty strategy: Economic Poverty, Poverty of Access, Poverty of Aspiration and 
Best Use of Resources.

Consideration has been given to this Strategy.  The evidence in Appendix A shows 
that a child's development and achievement of their potential are critically impacted 
by the support and help they receive during their early years.  The purpose of the 
Early Years service is to help give children the very best start in life thus 
addressing both poverty of access and poverty of aspiration in particular.  

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy (JHWS)

The Council in exercising its functions must have regard to both the JSNA and the 
JHWS.  

Consideration has been given to the JSNA and the JHWS and as referred to above 
the proposals contribute to the theme: Improve health and social outcomes for 
children and reduce inequalities and the outcome: Ensure all children get the best 
possible start in life and achieve their potential

Crime and Disorder

Under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the Council must exercise its 
various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those 
functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and 
disorder in its area (including anti-social and other behaviour adversely affecting 
the local environment), the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in its 
area and re-offending in its area.

The service may from time to time be in contact with families who may be 
experiencing or partaking in crime and disorder and consideration has been given 

Page 67



in the model to support those most at risk and indirectly prevent crime and 
disorder. 

2. Conclusion

The Executive Councillor responsible for Children’s Services  is recommended to 
agree the final service model for early years services set out in Appendix A - 
Section 3 which reflects the findings of the review and also to delegate the Director 
of Children’s Services, in consultation with the Executive Councillor responsible for 
Children’s Services, the authority to agree to any further changes to the early years 
service model that may be required as a result of findings from the EIA. Approval is 
also sought that the new early years service and bi-lingual support is 
commissioned through re-procurement by means of an open competitive tender 
because this is viewed as the best commissioning option for securing early years 
services in Lincolnshire. An extension to the existing Section 75 agreement with 
LCHS up to 31st March 2018 is recommended to ensure there is sufficient time to 
implement new health services successfully. This will enable the Council to secure 
continuity in the existing services in a lawful manner. 

3. Legal Comments:

The Council has the power to adopt the recommendations.  Legal issues relating 
to the decision are dealt with in the Report and Appendix.

The proposals are consistent with the Policy Framework and within the remit of 
the Executive Councillor if they are within the budget.

4. Resource Comments:

Financial implications will arise from the recommendation in this report to approve 
the final model for the Early Years Service. This will ensure that the £0.450m 
savings target previously identified will be achieved in 2017-2018.

There are no financial implications arising from the decision of the Executive 
Councillor on supporting the extension to the current Section 75 agreement with 
the Lincolnshire Community Health Services NHS Trust (LCHS) to 31st March 
2018 as a current base budget exists for this period. The recommendation to 
extend the current arrangement will allow a thorough recommissioning exercise to 
be undertaken with the expectation of delivering effective value for money.

5. Consultation

a)  Has Local Member Been Consulted?
n/a

b)  Has Executive Councillor Been Consulted? 
Yes

Page 68



c)  Scrutiny Comments
The Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee will be considering this 
report at its meeting on 15 July 2016. Comments from the Committee will be 
passed to the Executive Councillor.

d)  Policy Proofing Actions Required
n/a

6. Appendices

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report
Appendix A Review Findings and Preferred Early Years Model
Appendix B Equality Impact Assessment - Early Years and 0-6 Health 

Services

7. Background Papers

The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 
were relied upon in the writing of this report.

Document 
title

Where the document can be viewed

Executive 
Report- 
2016/17 
contract with 
Lincolnshire 
Community 
Health 
Services 
NHS Trust 
for Health 
Visiting, 
School 
Nursing and 
Antenatal 
Weight 
Management

http://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/mgChooseDocPack.aspx?ID=4
442

This report was written by Charlotte Gray, who can be contacted on 01522 553783 
or charlotte.gray@lincolnshire.gov.uk.

Page 69

http://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/mgChooseDocPack.aspx?ID=4442
http://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/mgChooseDocPack.aspx?ID=4442
mailto:charlotte.gray@lincolnshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A: Review Findings and Preferred Model for Early Years Service

Section 1. Current Services
Ofsted inspections of children's centres are currently on hold nationally whilst a new 
inspection framework is agreed. In data released by Ofsted for April-September 2015, 87% 
of Lincolnshire's children's centres were rated good or outstanding compared to 56% across 
the East Midlands and 67% nationally. In 2015/16, two children's centres in Lincolnshire 
were inspected by Ofsted. North Kesteven North achieved a good grading in all areas. East 
Lindsey North achieved good with outstanding features for leadership and management. Key 
strengths highlighted by Ofsted: 
 Exceptional communication and partnership working with a wide range of agencies, 

particularly health and social care, has resulted in the majority of families with the most 
pressing needs accessing services and receiving care and support.

 Strong focus on improving school readiness that is reflected in many aspects of the 
centre’s work. As a result of attending well organised and highly enjoyable activities 
children make good progress in developing important skills including their 
communication and social skills.

 Parents contribute exceptionally well to decision-making at the centre. 
 Arrangements to monitor the performance of the centre and to ensure it is held to 

account are rigorous. 

A robust peer review process is in place for children's centres, a mixed staff team, including 
a Health Visitor spend two days observing sessions, talking to parents and partners and 
reviewing evidence. In 2015/16 peer reviews were conducted in all 7 districts:
 100% were graded good in Access to Services
 100% were graded good in Quality & Impact
 86% were graded good or outstanding in Leadership and Management.

Current Model
Current contract management information and feedback from engagement with 
professionals has highlighted some strengths and weaknesses of the current early years 
model:
 The quality of PEEP and PEEP Plus sessions is excellent. Quality inspections in 2015/16 

report 59.33% were outstanding, 40% good and 0.66% required improvement. 
Attendance at sessions is mixed across the county with an average of only c60% (March 
2016) having more than 6 different families attending. Current commissioning has been 
quite rigid in prescribing the type and numbers of sessions to be delivered in each 
locality. Greater flexibility is needed so each locality can run sessions according to local 
need e.g. more sessions for certain ages, use different venues, offer some less 
structured sessions focussed on moving families into evidence based sessions. Being 
responsive to local need will improve attendance.

 Participation an engagement services largely rely on health providing up to date birth 
lists and identifying vulnerable families to contact. Health Visitors are already in contact 
with families and need to do more to encourage families to attend children’s centres. 
Health Visitors should know when women are pregnant and again could help them to 
access support from children’s centres antenatally so that they can build networks before 
giving birth. Participation and engagement services are good at contacting families they 
know about and supporting them to attend introductory sessions.  More vulnerable 
families seem to engage excellently with a less structured approach but transitioning 
them into more evidence based sessions is often a challenge- particularly as they form a 

Page 71



2

relationship with one professional and don’t want to move on. The process for engaging 
families in children’s centres needs to begin antenatally and a wider variety of structured 
and non-structured sessions need to be made available from different venues, but 
delivered by the same teams, to encourage a better transition from non-structured to 
evidence based early years services. Likewise bi-lingual support is good at engaging 
Black or Minority Ethnic (BME) families in groups and building strong networks within 
BME communities but there needs to be a greater focus on wider community cohesion 
and integration into the early years services that are available for all families. 

 Skills development services are working well across the county, between January and 
April 2016, 166 volunteers were maintained across the county, 53 volunteers were 
supported into further learning, 24 volunteers were supported into paid work and 228 
parents were recruited onto adult learning courses or apprenticeships. 

 1,250 parents completed adult learning courses in 2015/16 as coordinated through the 
Council’s Learning and Development Team with a 98% satisfaction rating. Feedback 
suggests that there are a plethora of courses that parents could access outside of any 
funding that is currently provided. It is felt that skills development needs to be the key 
focus for parents that are not in education, employment or training with enhanced 
support to access more formal accredited adult learning which is already available.

 The quality of crèche services is viewed as high, but the block contracting sessions does 
not always prove the best value for money. Sometimes there are few children that need 
to attend a crèche whilst their parent/carer is taking part in skills development. It is felt 
that areas of the County that spot purchase support e.g. from existing childcare 
providers, are able to manage the budget for services on a needs only basis which 
provides better value for money.  

Summary:
 The high quality offer available in Lincolnshire’s children’s centres is evident and this 

has a positive impact on supporting children’s development, however, there is more 
work needed to support vulnerable families to access services. The first priority is to 
support more families, particularly vulnerable families to start accessing services. 
Making families aware during pregnancy of the support available and helping them to 
access this support and meet their peers early on, should increase initial engagement 
at sessions. Secondly, once families start using services the priority is retaining their 
engagement and helping them and their children to progress well and so there needs to 
be a good variety of high quality services on offer to retain engagement and these 
services should be delivered by consistent teams of people that families know and trust. 

Section 2. Review Findings
Set out below are a variety of findings of the review to date relating to early years services. 
Findings relating to children’s health services will be set out in the related report to the 
Council’s Executive Committee in October 2016.

Statutory Duties
A report on statutory duties, national and local policy around services is available and has 
been considered in modelling services.

Children’s Centres
A Sure Start children’s centre is defined as a place or a group of places: 
 which is managed by or on behalf of, or under arrangements with, the local authority with 

a view to securing that early childhood services in the local authority’s area are made 
available in an integrated way; 

 through which early childhood services are made available (either by providing the 
services on site, or by providing advice and assistance on gaining access to services 
elsewhere); and 

Page 72



3

 at which activities for young children are provided. 

It follows from the statutory definition of a children’s centre that children’s centres are as 
much about making appropriate and integrated services available, as it is about providing 
premises in particular geographical areas. 

Early childhood services are defined as: 
 early years provision (early education and childcare); 
 social services functions of the local authority relating to young children, parents and 

prospective parents; 
 health services relating to young children, parents and prospective parents; 
 training and employment services to assist parents or prospective parents; and 
 information and advice services for parents and prospective parents. 

A children’s centre should make available universal and targeted early childhood services 
either by providing the services at the centre itself or by providing advice and assistance to 
parents (mothers and fathers) and prospective parents in accessing services provided 
elsewhere. Local authorities must ensure that children’s centres provide some activities for 
young children on site.

 Duty on local authorities to improve the well-being of young children in their area and 
reduce inequalities between them. 

 Duty on local authorities to make arrangements to secure that early childhood services in 
their area are provided in an integrated manner in order to facilitate access and 
maximise the benefits of those services to young children and their parents. 

 Duty on commissioners of local health services and Jobcentre Plus (as ‘relevant 
partners’) to work together with local authorities in their arrangements for improving the 
well-being of young children and securing integrated early childhood services. 

 Arrangements to be made by local authorities so that there are sufficient children’s 
centres, so far as reasonably practicable, to meet local need. 

 Duty on local authorities to ensure each children’s centre is within the remit of an 
advisory board, its make up and purpose. 

 Duty on local authorities to ensure there is consultation before any significant changes 
are made to children’s centre provision in their area. 

 Duty on local authorities, local commissioners of health services and Jobcentre Plus to 
consider whether the early childhood services they provide should be provided through 
children’s centres in the area. 

 Duties on local authorities after receiving a report from Ofsted following the inspection of 
a children’s centre. This includes preparing and publishing a written statement (an Action 
Plan) setting out the action to be taken in response to the report.

Summary:
 New service models must comply with children’s centres statutory duties as well as the 

new OfSTED framework, which has not yet been released. 
 Under the proposed new early years service model there are no arrangements being 

made for the provision of a new children’s centre and no changes that would result in a 
relevant children’s centre ceasing to be a children’s centre. The range and nature of 
services provided through children’s centre will not change significantly although they 
will be re-focused and commissioning arrangements will alter. 

Needs Summary
An analysis of data and trends was undertaken in April 2015. A full detailed report is 
available on request including data source references, but below are some key highlights:

Page 73



4

Profile of Children and Young People in Lincolnshire
 22% of Lincolnshire's population (157,862/731,516) are estimated to be aged between 0 

and 19 and this is projected to increase by 7.09% by 2025 with biggest increases of 
around 10% in Boston and North Kesteven. The 5-11 age group is projected to increase 
the most (13.6% increase by 2025). 

 Approximately 11.71% of people in Lincolnshire (84,863/724,453) live within the 20% 
most deprived areas nationally.  This is significantly lower than both the England 
(20.44%) and East Midlands (16.98%) averages. Lincoln and East Lindsey districts have 
the highest percentage of people living in the 20% most deprived areas nationally. There 
are 29 Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) in Lincolnshire that are in the top 10% most 
deprived nationally. 

 Across Lincolnshire 16.53% of children aged under 16 are living in low income 
households. This is lower than the national average for England (19.2%). Lincoln City 
district has the highest district percentage of children living in low income families with 
23.50% aged under 16s. Ingoldmells ward in East Lindsey has the highest ward 
percentage of under 16s living in low income families with 49.6%. There are a further 12 
wards with greater than 30% of all children living in low income families.

 Overall in Lincolnshire 3.2% of households have one or more dependent children whilst 
there are no adults in employment living in the household. This is better than the 4.2% 
average for England. 

 Overall in Lincolnshire 4.2% of households have one or more dependent children where 
at least one adult living in the household has a long-term health problem or disability. 
This is better than the 4.6% average for England. 

 At the time of the last national census, there were 32,804 lone parent families in 
Lincolnshire. 

 Across Lincolnshire in 2015, there were 8% of pupils with English as a second language. 
Boston was the district with the highest number of pupils with English as a second 
language with 27%. Central ward in Boston has the highest number of pupils with 
English as a second language with 65%. 

 In 2015 11% of school pupils in Lincolnshire were Black Minority Ethnic (BME).  The 
district with the highest number in Lincolnshire is Boston with 27%. Whilst Central ward 
in Boston, with 61%, and several other wards in Boston had high percentages of BME 
pupils, Abbey ward in Lincoln had the highest actual number of BME pupils in one ward 
with 530.

 Overall, there are 3% of pupils in Lincolnshire with a Special Educational Needs (SEN) 
Statement.

 As at 31st May 2015, Fenside ward in Boston had the greatest number of Children in 
Protection. East Lindsey district had the highest number of children in need as well as 
open Team Around the Child assessments. 

Children’s Centres
 In 2014/15, 90% of the population of 0 to 5s were registered with a children's centre, this 

is 10% higher than in 2013/14.  Across Lincolnshire, almost 62% of those registered had 
sustained contact (3 or more attendances) during 2014/15, which was a 7% increase 
from 2013/14. As at 30 June 2015, 94.8% of the estimated under 5 population in 
Lincolnshire were registered with a children's centre. 

 Across Lincolnshire in 2014/15, 97% of those children who were open to the Children's 
Social Care or Targeted teams were registered with children's centres.  Of those 
registered, 73% actually engaged with services in 2014/15. 

 Overall 39.1% of children with disabled parents in Lincolnshire were registered with a 
children's centre as at 30 June 2015.

 Overall 5.5% of pregnant teenagers and teenage parents in Lincolnshire were registered 
at children's centres as at 30 June 2015.  

Page 74



5

 There is generally a greater representation of children in areas of higher deprivation who 
are open to social care attending children's centres (38.7%) compared to general 
attendance of all children in areas of higher deprivation (22.82%).

 Overall in 2014, 67% of children who started school were assessed as having achieved 
a good level of development.  This is higher than the national average of 60%. Across 
Lincolnshire, 57.5% of children living in the 30% most deprived areas nationally achieved 
a good level of development, compared to 70.3% of those living in the rest of the county.  
Looking just at the attainment of those children who actually attended children's centres 
in Lincolnshire, 69% achieved a good level of development, compared to approximately 
63% of those who didn't attend children's centres.

 For all districts, the percentage of children achieving a good level of development was 
higher for those who attended children centres compared the percentages of those who 
didn't.  Particularly in West Lindsey where 9.69% more achieved a good level of 
development if they attended children's centres than those who didn't. Swineshead in 
Boston, Spilsby and Tattershall in East Lindsey, Witham Family Centre in Lincoln, 
Waddington Redwood and Billinghay in North Kesteven and Grantham Belton Lane and 
South Witham in South Kesteven all had greater than 15% higher achievement rates of a 
good level of development in their areas compared to those who didn't attend children's 
centres.

Summary:
 Lincolnshire’s 0-19 population is increasing and this must be considered in the capacity 

available to deliver services.
 Generally fewer children in Lincolnshire live in deprived areas, low income families or 

where there is no employed adult in the home, compared to the national average, but 
there are pockets of significant deprivation in the county where more targeted support 
may be needed.

 In some parts of the county there are high numbers of children where English is their 
second language and supporting these children and their families to access services 
will need specific consideration.

 Registration at children’s centres is high but could be improved for some key 
vulnerable groups. General sustained attendance at children’s centres could be 
improved, again particularly for some key vulnerable groups, although those known to 
social care or targeted teams have a better attendance compared to the general 
population in deprived areas. Data is showing that children that attend children’s centre 
services have a better level of development by the time they start school compared to 
those that don’t attend. 

Engagement Results
Between October and December 2015, public and professionals were engaged to 
understand their views of the services being reviewed. In total, more than 1,200 responses 
were received to questionnaires. Engagement events were also run with current providers, 
the wider provider market, Children’s Services Team Managers, Children’s Services locality 
staff, schools and pupils. Shadowing of services was also undertaken.

Page 75



6

 The stage parents/carers and professionals think the most support is needed:

During the early years of childhood (0-5) parents/carers and professionals felt families 
needed the most support during pregnancy up to 1 year (87%), of which 63% was only 
up until 8 weeks.

 90% of respondents attend a children’s centre occasionally or frequently. The main 
reasons stated by those respondents who attended a children's centre once and didn't 
return were that it wasn't local, they didn't like the groups, they didn't find it very 
welcoming, they returned to work or the times were not convenient for them attend. The 
top reasons stated by those who have never been to a children's centre were not 
knowing anybody, days or times being inconvenient, feeling like they wouldn't fit in, not 
offering activities they are interested in and the child being in a setting or attending other 
preferred activities.

 Only 28% of respondents said that they would like other sessions to be available through 
children's centres, these included; drop-In sessions, weighing clinics, bottle feeding 
support, music, singing and dancing sessions, more of the same sessions as are 
currently available, mental health support (both antenatal and postnatal), new mums 
sessions and young parents groups.

 Of the 27% of respondents who said that we could make it easier for them to attend 
children's centres, suggestions included; a wider variety of times to choose from, broader 
age groups (so both children can attend), better advertising/publicity, more planning 
around what the community already offers, make the activities closer to home (for 
example in community venues) and run more of the most popular activities.

 Respondents feel the most important things about going to a children’s centre for 
parents/carers and children are taking part in activities that help child development, 
socialising and making friends (both parents and children) and learning through play.  

 74% said they would be willing to pay for additional children's centre sessions depending 
on cost, value for money and ways of paying (such as pay as you go and not upfront).  
For those who said they would not, the primary reason was affordability.

 The responses indicate that the greatest number of people either drive (over 50%) or 
walk (over 40%) to children's centres.  Only 2.1% of responses indicate that people use 
public transport to travel there, while the remainder cycle or take taxis.

 Almost 60% of respondents currently travel less than 2 miles to a children's centre, 
however almost 40% said they would be willing to travel 3-5 miles, 27% 6-10 miles and 
7% more than 10 miles.

 Respondents would prefer to go to children's centres to take part in activities (78%).  
However they were nearly equally willing to go to more local community venues, 
nurseries/schools and parent and toddler groups.

Page 76



7

Summary:
 Families need the most support with and for their children in early childhood during 

pregnancy and through the first year. 
 There are still some barriers to some families accessing children’s centres which 

making changes to services can address e.g. tailoring sessions to need such as 
maternal mental health, using outreach venues. Children’s centres are important to 
parents to help child development and to create peer networks.  Many families would 
pay for sessions within reason although this may be a barrier for some families. Most 
people drive or walk to children’s centres (60% less than 2 miles) currently. Most people 
would be willing to travel further within reason. People prefer to go to children’s centres 
to access activities but they would be willing to go to other venues if services were put 
on there. 

Evidence

Focus on the first 1001 Critical Days
Local engagement feedback from parents/carers and professionals cites very early 
childhood (0-1) as the key time when families want and need the most support. Evidence is 
also clear that good parenting during the first 1001 days of a child’s life can have a 
significant positive impact on later life chances. As such, in designing service models this 
has been a key focus. 

Evidence summary:
 From birth to age 18 months, connections in the brain are created at a rate of one million 

per second. The earliest experiences shape a baby’s brain development, and have a 
lifelong impact on that baby’s mental and emotional health. Ensuring that the brain 
achieves its optimum development and nurturing during this peak period of growth is 
vitally important, and enables babies to achieve the best start in life.

 A foetus or baby exposed to toxic stress can have their responses to stress (cortisol) 
distorted in later life. This early stress can come from the mother suffering from 
symptoms of depression or anxiety, having a bad relationship with her partner, or an 
external trauma such as bereavement.

 International studies show that when a baby’s development falls behind the norm during 
the first year of life, it is then much more likely to fall even further behind in subsequent 
years, than to catch up with those who have had a better start.

 Attachment is the bond between a baby and its caregiver/s. There is longstanding 
evidence that a baby’s social and emotional development is strongly affected by the 
quality of their attachment.

 Babies are disproportionately vulnerable to abuse and neglect. In England they are 
seven times more likely to be killed than older children. Around 26% of babies (198,000) 
in the UK are estimated to be living within complex family situations, of heightened risk 
where there are problems such as substance misuse, mental illness or domestic 
violence. 36% of serious case reviews involve a baby under one.

 At least one loving, sensitive and responsive relationship with an adult caregiver teaches 
the baby to believe that the world is a good place and reduces the risk of them facing 
disruptive issues in later life.

 Every child deserves an equal opportunity to lead a healthy and fulfilling life, and with the 
right kind of early intervention, there is every opportunity for secure parent infant 
attachments to be developed.

Antenatal Education
Antenatal Education was a recurrent theme in all focus groups run with professionals who 
strongly felt a universal offer is needed in Lincolnshire that is delivered in an integrated way 
with midwifery, health visiting and early years services to aid the prevention of poor 

Page 77



8

parenting practice, increase general understanding about the importance of attachment and 
play at to identify early where people may be likely to struggle and need extra support. There 
is some solid evidence of the positive impact of antenatal education in helping to manage 
and reduce maternal anxiety and depression during pregnancy and early childhood, leading 
to improved coping, greater partner support and a better birth experience. 

Evidence summary: 
 Improved maternal mental health (National Childbirth Trust, 2010)
 Increased mental preparation for childbirth among pregnant women (Koehn, 2008)
 Decreased use of epidural anaesthesia during childbirth (Ferguson, Davis & Brown, 

2013)
 An increased likelihood of arriving at the hospital in active labour (Ferguson, Davis
 and Brown, 2013)
 Increased breastfeeding initiation and continuation (Schrader-McMillan, Barlow & 

Redshaw, 2009)
 Greater satisfaction with the couple and parent-infant relationships after birth (National 

Childbirth Trust, 2010)
 (The University of Warwick (Schrader McMillan et al. 2009):

o Antenatal education has a role to play in improving knowledge of and preparation 
for parenthood. 

o Participation in antenatal preparation courses is associated with higher 
satisfaction with the birth experience. 

o Antenatal preparation courses can lead mothers and fathers to adopt a range of 
healthy behaviours that affect pregnancy, birth and early parenthood (as well as 
their own health), such as eating more healthily, cutting down or stopping 
smoking and taking more exercise. 

o Group-based programmes have high levels of consumer satisfaction, partly 
because they offer parents the opportunity to develop supportive social networks 
with their peers. 

Implications for the new early years service:
 Families and professionals have told us how important they feel it is to provide good 

universal support and enhanced targeted support during very early childhood because 
of the positive impact it can have on the rest of a child’s and families lives. Evidence 
backs this up. 

Page 78



9

Section 3. Preferred Model Early Years Service

Age Universal Targeted Specialist Changes
 Antenatal education from 30 

weeks pregnant- integrated 
delivery by Health Visiting, 
Midwifery and Early Years 
service.

 Early Years service delivered 
from children’s centres or 
outreach from antenatal 35+ 
weeks.

 n/a via children’s health  n/a via children’s health  Introduction of universal antenatal 
education classes.

 More availability of Early Years service 
during the late antenatal period in 
preparation for parenthood.

 Early Years service delivered at 
children’s centres or outreach. 

 More sessions for children up to 
age 1.

 Toddler sessions aimed at up to 
age 3 (up to age 5 allowed) with 
focus on ‘ready to learn’.

 Mixed sessions for families with 
babies and toddlers. 

 Opportunities to run additional 
chargeable sessions.

 Early Years services for 
targeted groups as needed 
in children’s centres, 
outreach or in home e.g. 
teenage parents.

 Skills development 
programmes delivered in 
children’s centres or 
outreach for targeted 
families. 

 Crèche services for 
parents engaged in skills 
development sessions.

 Early Years service for 
targeted groups as 
needed in children’s 
centres, outreach or in 
home e.g. teenage 
parents.

 Skills development 
programmes delivered in 
children’s centres or 
outreach for targeted 
families. 

 Crèche services for 
parents engaged in skills 
development sessions.

 Health Visitors will lead on participation 
and engagement in children’s centres, 
particularly vulnerable groups.

 Antenatal Education delivered in 
children’s centres should increase 
families’ awareness of children’s centres 
as key venues of support post birth.

 Higher volume of services for children 
aged 0-1.

 More flexibility for outreach and targeted 
sessions to families based on need.

 Greater focus on targeted skills 
development and accessing existing 
adult learning opportunities.

Antenatal 
to Age 5

 BME inclusion support to 
encourage families from BME 
backgrounds to engage in 
existing services.

 Support eligible BME 
families to take up 2 year 
old child care funding.

 Support early years 
service with any targeted 
groups/home visits which 
may include BME families 
requiring translation 
support.

 Translation support to 
understand processes 
such as Team Around the 
Child, Child in Need and 
Child Protection.

 Support eligible BME 
families to take up 2 year 
old child care funding.

 Support early years 
service with any targeted 
groups/home visits which 
may include BME 
families requiring 
translation support.

 Translation support to 
understand processes 
such as Team Around 
the Child, Child in Need 
and Child Protection.

 Greater focus on accessing existing 
children’s centre services and supporting 
community cohesion.

 Greater integration with early years 
service.

P
age 79



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12 1

Equality Impact Analysis to enable informed decisions

The purpose of this document is to:-
I. help decision makers fulfil their duties under the Equality Act 2010 and 

II. for you to evidence  the positive and adverse impacts of the proposed change on people with protected characteristics and ways to 
mitigate or eliminate any adverse impacts.

Using this form
This form must be updated and reviewed as your evidence on a proposal for a project/service change/policy/commissioning of a service or 
decommissioning of a service evolves taking into account any consultation feedback, significant changes to the proposals and data to support 
impacts of proposed changes. The key findings of the most up to date version of the Equality Impact Analysis must be explained in the report 
to the decision maker and the Equality Impact Analysis must be attached to the decision making report.

**Please make sure you read the information below so that you understand what is required under the Equality Act 2010**

Equality Act 2010
The Equality Act 2010 applies to both our workforce and our customers. Under the Equality Act 2010, decision makers are under a personal 
duty, to have due (that is proportionate) regard to the need to protect and promote the interests of persons with protected characteristics. 

Protected characteristics
The protected characteristics under the Act are: age; disability; gender reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and maternity; 
race; religion or belief; sex; sexual orientation.

Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
Section 149 requires a public authority to have due regard to the need to:

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation, and any other conduct that is prohibited by/or under the Act
 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share relevant protected characteristics and persons who do not share those 

characteristics                                          
 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

P
age 81



Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12 2

The purpose of Section 149 is to get decision makers to consider the impact their decisions may or will have on those with protected 
characteristics and by evidencing the impacts on people with protected characteristics decision makers should be able to demonstrate 'due 
regard'.

Decision makers duty under the Act
Having had careful regard to the Equality Impact Analysis, and also the consultation responses, decision makers are under a personal duty to 
have due regard to the need to protect and promote the interests of persons with protected characteristics (see above) and to:-    

(i) consider and analyse how the decision is likely to affect those with protected characteristics, in practical terms,
(ii) remove any unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other prohibited conduct,
(iii) consider whether practical steps should be taken to mitigate or avoid any adverse consequences that the decision is likely to  have, for 

persons with protected characteristics and, indeed, to consider whether the decision should not be taken at all, in the interests of 
persons with protected characteristics,

(iv)  consider whether steps should be taken to advance equality, foster good relations and generally promote the interests of persons with 
protected characteristics, either by varying the recommended decision or by taking some other decision.

Conducting an Impact Analysis

The Equality Impact Analysis is a process to identify the impact or likely impact a project, proposed service change, commissioning, 
decommissioning or policy will have on people with protected characteristics listed above. It should be considered at  the beginning of the 
decision making process.
 
The Lead Officer responsibility 
This is the person writing the report for the decision maker. It is the responsibility of the Lead Officer to make sure that the Equality Impact 
Analysis is robust and proportionate to the decision being taken.

Summary of findings
You must provide a clear and concise summary of the key findings of this Equality Impact Analysis in the decision making report and attach this 
Equality Impact Analysis to the report.  

P
age 82



Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12 3

Impact – definition

An impact is an intentional or unintentional lasting consequence or significant change to people's lives brought about by an action or series of 
actions.

How much detail to include? 
The Equality Impact Analysis should be proportionate to the impact of proposed change. In deciding this asking simple questions “Who might 
be affected by this decision?” "Which protected characteristics might be affected?" and “How might they be affected?”  will help you consider 
the extent to which you already have evidence, information and data, and where there are gaps that you will need to explore. Ensure the 
source and date of any existing data is referenced.
You must consider both obvious and any less obvious impacts. Engaging with people with the protected characteristics will help you to identify 
less obvious impacts as these groups share their perspectives with you.

A given proposal may have a positive impact on one or more protected characteristics and have an adverse impact on others. You must 
capture these differences in this form to help decision makers to arrive at a view as to where the balance of advantage or disadvantage lies. If 
an adverse impact is unavoidable then it must be clearly justified and recorded as such, with an explanation as to why no steps can be taken to 
avoid the impact. Consequences must be included.

Proposals for more than one option If more than one option is being proposed you must ensure that the Equality Impact Analysis covers all 
options. Depending on the circumstances, it may be more appropriate to complete an Equality Impact Analysis for each option.

The information you provide in this form must be sufficient to allow the decision maker to fulfil their role as above. You must include 
the latest version of the Equality Impact Analysis with the report to the decision maker. Please be aware that the information in this 

form must be able to stand up to legal challenge.

P
age 83



Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12 4

Title of the policy / project / service 
being considered 

Early Years and Children’s Health 
Services – Early Years and 0-6 Health 
Services

Person / people completing analysis v1.0 Kevin Johnson, Simon Murphy, 
Marie Jarrett, Charlotte Gray

Service Area Children’s Services Strategic 
Commissioning Team

Lead Officer Charlotte Gray

Who is the decision maker? Executive How was the Equality Impact Analysis 
undertaken?

v1.0 Initial version of EIA conducted as 
an internal review team workshop 
exercise

Date of meeting when decision will 
be made

06/09/2016 Version control v1.0

Is this proposed change to an 
existing policy/service/project or is 
it new?

Existing policy/service/project LCC directly delivered, commissioned, 
re-commissioned or de-
commissioned?

Re-commissioned

Describe the proposed change We are reviewing the early childhood and children's health services offered to all children, young people and their families. This 
includes Health Visiting, Antenatal Weight Management, School Nursing and services linked to Children’s Centres.  We must 
review what is provided to families in Lincolnshire to ensure good quality, effective and efficient support.

The range and nature of changes to children's centre services are not considered significant but include:
 More availability of antenatal services for families
 Health Visiting will lead on encouraging participation and engagement in children's centres and registration of families to 

children's centres, particularly for vulnerable families
 Continue sessions for children up to age 5 but have more sessions focused on children up to age 3
 Continued skills development support and access to existing adult learning courses
 Continued access to crèche services for families that need this support to undertake skills development.

The key changes for health services (Health Visiting and Antenatal Weight Management) from antenatal period up to the end of 
reception age are:

 Health Visiting will cover children up to the end of Reception year at school instead of age 5 when they previously 

Background Information

P
age 84



Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12 5

transferred to the School Nursing Service
 Named Health Visitor (HV) for all families up to 6-8 weeks and longer if the child or family need additional support
 More intensive antenatal and postnatal involvement from Health Visitors for families that need extra support
 Introduction of antenatal education classes for all families
 Health Visitors delivering more mental health support
 Additional group sessions provided by the Health Visiting service around key child development milestones
 Subject to changes to legal requirements, an integrated 2-2½ year review; led by a Health Visitor if not in a childcare 

setting, otherwise only if the setting has a health concern
 Improved peer support programme
 No health needs assessment for all children at school entry in Reception and no hearing screening in Reception Year for 

all children
 Height and weight measurement (NCMP) will be led by a Health Visitor and delivered by a skill-mix public health nurse team.

For the avoidance of doubt the following checks that all families currently receive will still be delivered by the Health Visiting Service; 
antenatal 28+ weeks, 10-14 days, 6-8 weeks and 8-12 months.

P
age 85



Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12 6

Evidencing the impacts
In this section you will explain the difference that proposed changes are likely to make on people with protected characteristics.
To help you do this  first consider the impacts the proposed changes may have on people without protected characteristics before then 
considering the impacts the proposed changes may have on people with protected characteristics.

You must evidence here who will benefit and how they will benefit. If there are no benefits that you can identify please state 'No 
perceived benefit' under the relevant protected characteristic. You can add sub categories under the protected characteristics to make 
clear the impacts. For example under Age you may have considered the impact on 0-5 year olds or people aged 65 and over, under 
Race you may have considered Eastern European migrants, under Sex you may have considered specific impacts on men.

Data to support impacts of proposed changes 
When considering the equality impact of a decision it is important to know who the people are that will be affected by any change.

Population data and the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
The Lincolnshire Research Observatory (LRO) holds a range of population data by the protected characteristics. This can help put a 
decision into context. Visit the LRO website and its population theme page by following this link: http://www.research-lincs.org.uk  If you 
cannot find what you are looking for, or need more information, please contact the LRO team. You will also find information about the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment on the LRO website.

Workforce profiles
You can obtain information by many of the protected characteristics for the Council's workforce and comparisons with the labour market 
on the Council's website.  As of 1st April 2015, managers can obtain workforce profile data by the protected characteristics for their 
specific areas using Agresso.

P
age 86

http://www.research-lincs.org.uk/
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/residents/community-and-living/equality-and-diversity/a-strategic-approach-equality-and-diversity/valuing-our-workforce/community-and-workforce-statistics/52342.article


Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12 7

Age Potential positive impacts identified.
The model developed as part of the review proposes to:

 Extend the services offered, both earlier in the antenatal period and later until the end of Reception year.
o Evidence from our engagement, supported by national evidence, suggests that during pregnancy is one of 

the times support is most important for families. People also felt that the transition to Reception year at 
school is one of the most important times for children's health support. Increasing Health Visiting Service 
support to the end of Reception year will mean that families have greater consistency during this 
transition period, particularly vulnerable families that may have had a named Health Visitor since before 
birth. The service will work with schools to help them support families that may need extra support during 
the transition to school.

o The impact of this is that Health Visitors will have more early involvement with parents before a baby is 
born allowing them to better identify and support families that need additional support.  They will also 
continue to support children if they need additional support during their first Reception year at school.

 Increase the focus on sessions in children's centres for babies and toddlers up to age 3, whilst continuing to offer 
activities for children up to age 5.

o Evidence suggests that early years are key for child development and responses from public and 
professionals to the engagement questionnaires showed that people felt they and their children needed 
most support in very early childhood.  

o The impact is that there will be more sessions specifically for babies and toddlers up to age 3 run through 
children's centres.

 Offer specific age-related support based on key child development milestones; at 3-4 months and 18 months.
o Evidence from health professionals suggests that these are key times when it is important to provide 

information and education around key child development topics, such as delayed weaning, oral health 
promotion, sleeping routines and home safety.

o The impact of this is that more age-specific groups will be available for all parents to attend, so that they 
receive key messages at appropriate and relevant times in their child's development. Families that may 
need extra support can be identified and offered help and guidance.

These changes are all identified as having potential positive impacts for children aged 0-6 and their families.

Positive impacts
The proposed change may have the following positive impacts on persons with protected characteristics – If no positive impact, please state 'no 
positive impact'.

P
age 87



Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12 8

Disability No Potential positive impacts currently identified.

Gender reassignment No potential positive impacts currently identified.

Marriage and civil partnership No potential positive impacts currently identified.

Pregnancy and maternity Potential positive impacts identified.
The model developed as part of the review proposes to:

 Offer more intensive antenatal involvement from Health Visitors for families that need extra support and where 
there may be safeguarding concerns.

 Introduce universal antenatal education classes, delivered from children's centres and/or outreach venues.
 Deliver greater integration between midwifery, health visiting and early childhood services.
 Provide better mental health identification and intervention around postnatal depression.
 Provide more antenatal and early childhood activities from 35 weeks pregnancy and in early childhood.   

Evidence from the engagement questionnaires, supported by national evidence, suggests that during pregnancy and in the 
first year of life is a very important for support. 
The impact of these proposals is that Health Visitors, working more closely with Midwives and Early Years workers, will 
have more early involvement with parents before a baby is born, will be able to raise any concerns earlier and can provide 
direct support for parents. Evidence shows earlier, successful intervention has a positive impact of outcomes for children 
and throughout their lives.  Health visitors provide expert advice, support and interventions to all families with children in 
the first years of life (National health visiting service specification 2014/15 NHS England 2014). They are uniquely placed to 
identify the needs of individual children, parents and families (including safeguarding needs) and refer or direct them to 
existing local services, thereby promoting early intervention. They can also have a role in community asset mapping, 
identifying whether a particular community has any specific needs. By offering support through working in partnership 
with other professionals, for example staff working in children's centres, they can help communities to help themselves.
These changes are all identified as having potential positive impacts for parents and families during pregnancy and 
maternity. 

P
age 88



Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12 9

Race No potential positive impacts currently identified.

Religion or belief No potential positive impacts currently identified.

Sex No potential positive impacts currently identified.

Sexual orientation No potential positive impacts currently identified.

If you have identified positive impacts for other groups not specifically covered by the protected characteristics in the Equality Act 
2010 you can include them here if it will help the decision maker to make an informed decision.

 A single 0-19 health service, which is much more integrated with early childhood services, will make it easier for children, young people and their families to 
access these services.

 Providing more intensive antenatal and postnatal involvement from Health Visitors and targeted early years sessions to families is identified as having potential 
positive impacts for vulnerable children, young people and families who need the most support.

 Making services available from children's centres and outreach community venues around the county is identified as having potential positive impacts for 
children, young people and their families who might struggle to access services due to rural isolation.

 Offering health clinics/drop-ins and a telephone advice service as part of Health Visiting is identified as having potential positive impacts for children and families 
who might struggle due to rural isolation.

P
age 89



Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12 10

Age Potential perceived adverse impacts identified.
The model developed as part of the review proposes to:

 No longer carry out a health needs assessment in Reception Year.  
o Evidence from the engagement questionnaire suggests that people feel the transition to Reception and 

first year at primary school is one of the most important times for children's health support.
o Continued Health Visiting support until end of Reception Year will mitigate no longer carrying out a 

universal health needs assessment.  Any health needs should already be known and the Health Visitor can 
work with the school during the first year to make sure any additional needs are catered for, or 
assessments can be carried out as required if there are any concerns. For example, the Health Visitor can 
advise and encourage parents and children to attend a vision screening for amblyopia at age 4-5.

 No universal hearing screening in Reception Year. 
o Evidence from the engagement questionnaire suggests that people feel the transition to Reception and 

first year at primary school is one of the most important times for children's health support.  Responses to 
the engagement questionnaire from professionals did not identify eyesight and hearing checks as an 
important part of the service.

o All children are offered screening shortly after birth for hearing problems, Public Health England report 
take up of 98.9% nationally. The result is a reduction in referrals to audiology departments as children get 
older because problems are being identified very early. All children now starting school should have had 
access to this screening and so instead of a carrying out universal hearing screenings, if a child is thought 
to have a hearing problem they can be referred directly by their GP for a screening or their school can 
work with the Health Visiting Service who will support a referral to audiology services. 

These changes are all identified as potentially having perceived negative impacts for children aged 3-5 and their families .

Negative impacts of the proposed change and practical steps to mitigate or avoid any adverse consequences on people with 
protected characteristics are detailed below. If you have not identified any mitigating action to reduce an adverse impact please 
state 'No mitigating action identified'.

Adverse/negative impacts 
You must evidence how people with protected characteristics will be adversely impacted and any proposed mitigation to reduce or eliminate 
adverse impacts. An adverse impact causes disadvantage or exclusion. If such an impact is identified please state how, as far as possible, it is 
justified; eliminated; minimised or counter balanced by other measures. 
If there are no adverse impacts that you can identify please state 'No perceived adverse impact' under the relevant protected characteristic.

P
age 90



Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12 11

Disability No potential perceived adverse impacts currently identified.

Gender reassignment No potential perceived adverse impacts currently identified.

Marriage and civil partnership No potential perceived adverse impacts currently identified.

Pregnancy and maternity No potential perceived adverse impacts currently identified.

Race No potential perceived adverse impacts currently identified.

Religion or belief No potential perceived adverse impacts currently identified.

Sex No potential perceived adverse impacts currently identified.

Sexual orientation No potential perceived adverse impacts currently identified.

P
age 91



Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12 12

If you have identified negative impacts for other groups not specifically covered by the protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 you 
can include them here if it will help the decision maker to make an informed decision.

 By the nature of a review, there may be a perception from service users that services will be cut as a result, this may be of more concern to more vulnerable 
service users who rely on these services for support.  Mitigation for this is that the key messages for the review need to be reinforced as part of the information 
given to the public; that the aims of the review are to improve and redesign services to meet the needs of customers.

P
age 92



Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12 13

Objective(s) of the EIA consultation/engagement activity

 To identify and understand the impacts, both positive and negative, that planned changes to these services would have on people based on the protected 
characteristics

 To identify and understand any impacts, both positive and negative, that planned changes to these services would have on other groups
 To determine the risk regarding any disadvantage to groups of people, particularly based on the protected characteristics, and look at how this could be reduced 

or avoided
 To engage with professionals and the public, who use these services, if they think they will be impacted, either positively or negatively, by the planned changes
 To make sure that we have considered the impacts the planned changes could have on groups based on the protected characteristics and, where this would 

result in a disadvantage to a particular group, that we have identified ways to avoid or reduce this impact to an acceptable level.

Stakeholders

Stake holders are people or groups who may be directly affected (primary stakeholders) and indirectly affected (secondary stakeholders)

You must evidence here who you involved in gathering your evidence about benefits, adverse impacts and practical steps to mitigate or avoid 
any adverse consequences. You must be confident that any engagement was meaningful. The Community engagement team can help you to 
do this and you can contact them at consultation@lincolnshire.gov.uk

State clearly what (if any) consultation or engagement activity took place by stating who you involved when compiling this EIA under the 
protected characteristics. Include organisations you invited and organisations who attended, the date(s) they were involved and method of 
involvement i.e. Equality Impact Analysis workshop/email/telephone conversation/meeting/consultation. State clearly the objectives of the EIA 
consultation and findings from the EIA consultation under each of the protected characteristics. If you have not covered any of the protected 
characteristics please state the reasons why they were not consulted/engaged. 

P
age 93

mailto:consultation@lincolnshire.gov.uk


Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12 14

Age Due to the commercial sensitivity and current stage of the service design process, this version of the EIA has been produced 
with a small cohort of review team members, using professional expertise, knowledge of the services under review and 
information from background research, evidence and public and professional engagement: Charlotte Gray, LCC Children's 
Services Commissioning Team Manager, Kevin Johnson, LCC Children's Services Senior Commissioning Officer; Simon 
Murphy, LCC Children's Services Commissioning Officer; Marie Jarret, Public Health Programme Manager – Children's Health.

Disability Due to the commercial sensitivity and current stage of the service design process, this version of the EIA has been produced 
with a small cohort of review team members, using professional expertise, knowledge of the services under review and 
information from background research, evidence and public and professional engagement: Charlotte Gray, LCC Children's 
Services Commissioning Team Manager, Kevin Johnson, LCC Children's Services Senior Commissioning Officer; Simon 
Murphy, LCC Children's Services Commissioning Officer; Marie Jarret, Public Health Programme Manager – Children's Health.

Gender reassignment Due to the commercial sensitivity and current stage of the service design process, this version of the EIA has been produced 
with a small cohort of review team members, using professional expertise, knowledge of the services under review and 
information from background research, evidence and public and professional engagement: Charlotte Gray, LCC Children's 
Services Commissioning Team Manager, Kevin Johnson, LCC Children's Services Senior Commissioning Officer; Simon 
Murphy, LCC Children's Services Commissioning Officer; Marie Jarret, Public Health Programme Manager – Children's Health.

Marriage and civil partnership Due to the commercial sensitivity and current stage of the service design process, this version of the EIA has been produced 
with a small cohort of review team members, using professional expertise, knowledge of the services under review and 
information from background research, evidence and public and professional engagement: Charlotte Gray, LCC Children's 
Services Commissioning Team Manager, Kevin Johnson, LCC Children's Services Senior Commissioning Officer; Simon 
Murphy, LCC Children's Services Commissioning Officer; Marie Jarret, Public Health Programme Manager – Children's Health.

Pregnancy and maternity Due to the commercial sensitivity and current stage of the service design process, this version of the EIA has been produced 
with a small cohort of review team members, using professional expertise, knowledge of the services under review and 
information from background research, evidence and public and professional engagement: Charlotte Gray, LCC Children's 
Services Commissioning Team Manager, Kevin Johnson, LCC Children's Services Senior Commissioning Officer; Simon 
Murphy, LCC Children's Services Commissioning Officer; Marie Jarret, Public Health Programme Manager – Children's Health.

Race Due to the commercial sensitivity and current stage of the service design process, this version of the EIA has been produced 
with a small cohort of review team members, using professional expertise, knowledge of the services under review and 
information from background research, evidence and public and professional engagement: Charlotte Gray, LCC Children's 
Services Commissioning Team Manager, Kevin Johnson, LCC Children's Services Senior Commissioning Officer; Simon 
Murphy, LCC Children's Services Commissioning Officer; Marie Jarret, Public Health Programme Manager – Children's Health.

Who was involved in the EIA consultation/engagement activity? Detail any findings identified by the protected characteristic

P
age 94



Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12 15

Religion or belief Due to the commercial sensitivity and current stage of the service design process, this version of the EIA has been produced 
with a small cohort of review team members, using professional expertise, knowledge of the services under review and 
information from background research, evidence and public and professional engagement: Charlotte Gray, LCC Children's 
Services Commissioning Team Manager, Kevin Johnson, LCC Children's Services Senior Commissioning Officer; Simon 
Murphy, LCC Children's Services Commissioning Officer; Marie Jarret, Public Health Programme Manager – Children's Health.

Sex Due to the commercial sensitivity and current stage of the service design process, this version of the EIA has been produced 
with a small cohort of review team members, using professional expertise, knowledge of the services under review and 
information from background research, evidence and public and professional engagement: Charlotte Gray, LCC Children's 
Services Commissioning Team Manager, Kevin Johnson, LCC Children's Services Senior Commissioning Officer; Simon 
Murphy, LCC Children's Services Commissioning Officer; Marie Jarret, Public Health Programme Manager – Children's Health.

Sexual orientation Due to the commercial sensitivity and current stage of the service design process, this version of the EIA has been produced 
with a small cohort of review team members, using professional expertise, knowledge of the services under review and 
information from background research, evidence and public and professional engagement: Charlotte Gray, LCC Children's 
Services Commissioning Team Manager, Kevin Johnson, LCC Children's Services Senior Commissioning Officer; Simon 
Murphy, LCC Children's Services Commissioning Officer; Marie Jarret, Public Health Programme Manager – Children's Health.

Are you confident that everyone who 
should have been involved in producing 
this version of the Equality Impact 
Analysis has been involved in a 
meaningful way?
The purpose is to make sure you have got 
the perspective of all the protected 
characteristics.

Yes

Once the changes have been 
implemented how will you undertake 
evaluation of the benefits and how 
effective the actions to reduce adverse 
impacts have been?

A post-project review will be conducted to identify any benefits already achieved.  In addition children's centres are 
monitored monthly against performance indicators relating to take up of services by a wide range of groups, including 
outcomes for targeted/vulnerable families.  Re-commissioned or newly commissioned services will be subject to contract 
management against performance. This will involve tracking indicators designed to monitor the effectiveness of these 
services at meeting people’s needs, including feedback and views or service users.

P
age 95



Equality Impact Analysis 5 June 2015 V12 16

Are you handling personal data? No

If yes, please give details.

Action Lead officer TimescaleActions required
Include any actions identified in this 
analysis for on-going monitoring of 
impacts.

Undertake engagement with 
professionals and public to identify 
further impacts.

Kevin Johnson 30 June 2016

Signed off by Date Click here to enter a date.

Further Details

P
age 96



 

     Policy and Scrutiny 
 

Open Report on behalf of Richard Wills, the Director responsible for 
Democratic Services 

 

Report to: Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 15 July 2016 

Subject: 
Lincolnshire Safeguarding Boards Scrutiny Sub-
Group – Update  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This report enables the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee to have 
an overview of the activities of the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Boards Scrutiny 
Sub-Group, in particular the Sub-Group’s consideration of child safeguarding 
matters. The minutes of the last meeting of the Scrutiny Sub-Group held on 6 
April 2016 are attached.   

 
 

Actions Required: 

That the minutes of the meeting of the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Boards 
Scrutiny Sub-Group, held on 6 April 2016, be noted. 
 

 
1. Background
 
The Lincolnshire Safeguarding Boards Scrutiny Sub-Group considers both adults’ 
and children's safeguarding matters, in particular focusing on the activities of the 
Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Board and Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults 
Board. 
 
The last meeting of the Sub-Group was held on 6 April 2016 and the minutes are 
attached at Appendix A to this report. As the remit of the Children and Young 
People Scrutiny Committee includes children's safeguarding, the Committee is 
requested to focus on those minutes of the Sub-Group, which are relevant to this 
remit.     
 
2. Conclusion
 
The minutes appended to this report are for the Committee’s information.
 
3. Consultation 

 
 

 
 

 
 

a)  Policy Proofing Actions Required 

This report does not require policy proofing. 
 

Page 97

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 

 

4. Appendices 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Minutes of the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Boards Scrutiny Sub-
Group held on 6 April 2016. 

 
5. Background Papers 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
This report was written by Catherine Wilman, who can be contacted on 01522 
55(3788) or catherine.wilman@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 

Page 98

mailto:catherine.wilman@lincolnshire.gov.uk


1

LINCOLNSHIRE SAFEGUARDING 
BOARDS SCRUTINY SUB-GROUP

6 APRIL 2016

PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR C R OXBY (CHAIRMAN)

Lincolnshire County Council: Councillors D Brailsford, S R Dodds, R A H McAuley, 
Mrs S Ransome and Mrs L A Rollings.

Officers in attendance:-

Chris Cook (Independent Chairman of the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children 
Board), Dave Culy (Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults Board Manager), 
Barry Earnshaw (Independent Chairman, Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults Board), 
Simon Evans (Health Scrutiny Officer), Cheryl Hall (Democratic Services Officer), 
Caroline Mogg (CSE Co-ordinator), Andrew Morris (LSCB Business Manager) and 
Jade Sullivan (LSCB Audit and Policy Officer).

22    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mrs P A Bradwell (Executive 
Councillor for Adult Care and Health Services, Children's Services) and C Burke 
(District Council Representative).  

The Chairman welcomed to the meeting Barry Earnshaw (Independent Chairman of 
the Safeguarding Adults Board) who was attending his first meeting in this capacity 
and Councillor R A H McAuley as a newly appointed Member of the Sub-Group.

23    DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS

No interests were declared at this point in the meeting.

24    MINUTES OF THE LINCOLNSHIRE SAFEGUARDING BOARDS 
SCRUTINY SUB GROUP MEETING HELD ON 6 JANUARY 2016

RESOLVED

That the minutes from the meeting held on 6 January 2016 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman, subject to the inclusion of 
Chris Cook (Independent Chairman of the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children 
Board) and Jade Sullivan (LSCB Audit and Policy Officer) in the list of 
attendees. 

Page 99



2
LINCOLNSHIRE SAFEGUARDING BOARDS SCRUTINY SUB-GROUP
6 APRIL 2016

25    KEY MESSAGES FROM LINCOLNSHIRE SAFEGUARDING ADULTS 
BOARD

Consideration was given to a report which updated the Sub-Group on the key issues 
from the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults Board (LSAB) held in January 2016. 

Members were advised that Barry Earnshaw had recently been appointed to the role 
as Independent Chairman of the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults Board, with effect 
from 1 April 2016.  

Members were also advised that the Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR) Policy and 
Toolkit was approved by the Board at the January meeting and embedded into 
practice from 1 March 2016.  The new Policy and Toolkit set out the requirements for 
submission of a Significant Incident Notification, the process which was undertaken 
to affirm that the notification was an SAR and the requirements from agencies during 
the review. 

It was noted that an item on the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults Board three year 
Strategy would be presented to the Sub-Group at its meeting on 28 September 2016.  
It was also noted that the Board was currently working on the development of a 
Prevention Strategy. 

In response to a question, Members were advised that safeguarding referrals from 
care homes would usually be reported via the Safeguarding Team. 

Members were assured that similar to the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults Board; 
the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Board had a standing item on its agendas for 
declaration of interests. 

RESOLVED

That the report be noted. 

26    SAFEGUARDING ADULTS REVIEWS

Consideration was given to a report which updated the Sub-Group on current 
Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SAR) (formerly known as Serious Case Reviews), 
which were going through the early information gathering process. 

There were four SARs currently being processed, details of which were in the report 
and the Sub-Group was updated on the progress and current situation of each. 

Members were provided with an opportunity to ask questions in relation to the four 
SARs and officers responded to those questions raised. 

RESOLVED

That the report be noted. 

Page 100



3
LINCOLNSHIRE SAFEGUARDING BOARDS SCRUTINY SUB-GROUP

6 APRIL 2016

27    UPDATE ON THE WORK OF THE LINCOLNSHIRE SAFEGUARDING 
CHILDREN BOARD AND ITS SUB-GROUPS

Consideration was given to a report which provided the Sub-Group with an update on 
the work currently being undertaken by the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Board 
(LSCB) and its sub-groups. 

Members were reminded that that the Government had recently commissioned an 
independent review of children's safeguarding, which ended in March 2016.  A 
proposal in the review, which the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Board had 
responded to, was to centrally commission Serious Case Reviews.  

Some Members reiterated they were against centralisation.  The Independent Chair 
of the LSCB stated that it was clear from discussions that the Government lacked 
confidence in a certain number of safeguarding boards and their transparency, 
across the country. 

RESOLVED

That the report be noted. 

28    SERIOUS CASE REVIEW - C

RESOLVED

That this item be deferred to a future meeting. 

29    UPDATE ON THE NEW OFSTED INSPECTION FRAMEWORK

Consideration was given to a report which updated the Sub-Group on the work 
currently being undertaken by the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Board for its 
inspection preparation. 

Members were advised that the joint targeted area inspections were an inspection of 
frontline practice and the leadership and management in relations to multi-agency 
arrangements.  The inspections would be led by Ofsted with parallel inspections of 
the Police, the Youth Offending Service, the Probation Service, health providers and 
commissioners through the Care Quality Commission.  Members were guided 
through the timeline for inspections, as detailed on pages 73 – 75 of the report. 

Members were assured that any blockages over information sharing were being 
addressed and it was hoped that full engagement would be achieved by May 2016. 

A Member of the Sub-Group sought assurance that an inspector would not be 
allowed to come into contact with a children without a professional known to the child 
being present.  Officers agreed to take this query forward. 

Page 101



4
LINCOLNSHIRE SAFEGUARDING BOARDS SCRUTINY SUB-GROUP
6 APRIL 2016

RESOLVED

That the report be noted. 

30    LINCOLNSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN BOARD POLICY AND 
AUDIT UPDATE

Consideration was given to a report which provided an overview of the policy and 
audit development of the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Board. 

Members were advised that the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Board co-
ordinated the development of safeguarding policy and audit development within 
Lincolnshire and had a robust governance structure in place to undertake this 
function.   

Members were informed of new policies which had recently been developed; those 
current policies requiring updates; and entirely new versions of existing policies which 
were detailed on page 98 of the report.  Attached at Appendix A to the report was he 
Strategic Audit Programme. 

A discussion took place regarding the 'who should be involved' column on Appendix 
A, where a number of inclusions were suggested. 

RESOLVED

That the report be noted. 

31    IDENTIFICATION AND PREVENTION OF CHILD SEXUAL EXPLOITATION

Consideration was given to a report which provided the Sub-Group with an update on 
the work undertaken by the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Board in relation to 
Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE). 

Members were advised that the STOP CSE campaign was launched on 16 March 
2016 to coincide with the national CSE Awareness Day on 18 March 2016.  All 
campaign materials had a link to the dedicated STOP CSE website 
www.couldbeanyone.org.uk where there was further information about CSE and links 
to helplines and other resources.  Members congratulated officers for the successful 
launch. 

Members were also advised that four new Early Help Workers – CSE Leads had 
recently been recruited.  The workers would be located in each of the four Early Help 
Teams and would take the lead and co-ordinate all services for those children and 
young people most at risk of CSE.  In response to a question, it was confirmed that 
these workers could undertake work with schools. 

RESOLVED

That the report be noted. 

Page 102

http://www.couldbeanyone.org.uk/


5
LINCOLNSHIRE SAFEGUARDING BOARDS SCRUTINY SUB-GROUP

6 APRIL 2016

32    LINCOLNSHIRE SAFEGUARDING BOARDS SCRUTINY SUB GROUP 
WORK PROGRAMME

The Sub-Group considered its work programme for coming meetings, which included 
the schedule of upcoming Board meetings. 

It was confirmed that the item on 'Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Board Policy 
and Audit Update' should be added to the work programme as a standing item. 

Sub-Group representatives to attend forthcoming Board meetings were agreed upon. 

RESOLVED

That the work programme be noted. 

The meeting closed at 3.55 pm.

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

Policy and Scrutiny 
 

Open Report on behalf of Richard Wills, the Director responsible for 
Democratic Services 

 

Report to: Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 15 July 2016 

Subject: 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee Work 
Programme   

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This item enables the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee to 
consider its own work programme for the coming year. 

 
 

Actions Required: 

(1) To comment and agree on the content of the work programme, as set out 
in Appendix A to this report. 

(2) To note the content of the Children's Services Forward Plan, as set out in 
Appendix B to this report. 

 

 
1. Background 
 
Current Work Programme 
 
At every meeting of the Committee, Members are invited to consider their future 
Work Programme and to agree on items to be included in the Work Programme. 
The current work programme for the Committee is attached at Appendix A to this 
report. 
 
Forward Plan 
 
Also attached at Appendix B for the Committee’s consideration is a list of the 
intended decisions of the Executive or Executive Councillor for Adult Care and 
Health Services, Children's Services, which fall within the remit of the Children and 
Young People Scrutiny Committee.      
 
Scrutiny Activity Definitions 
 
Set out below are the definitions used to describe the types of scrutiny, relating to 
the items:  

 

Budget Scrutiny - The Committee is scrutinising the previous year’s budget, the 
current year’s budget or proposals for the future year’s budget.  
 

Page 105

Agenda Item 9



Pre-Decision Scrutiny - The Committee is scrutinising a proposal, prior to a 
decision on the proposal by the Executive, the Executive Councillor or a senior 
officer. 
 

Performance Scrutiny - The Committee is scrutinising periodic performance, issue 
specific performance or external inspection reports.    
 

Policy Development - The Committee is involved in the development of policy, 
usually at an early stage, where a range of options are being considered.  
 

Consultation - The Committee is responding to (or making arrangements to 
respond to) a consultation, either formally or informally. This includes pre-
consultation engagement.   
 

Status Report - The Committee is considering a topic for the first time where a 
specific issue has been raised or members wish to gain a greater understanding.  
 

Update Report - The Committee is scrutinising an item following earlier 
consideration.   
 

Scrutiny Review Activity - This includes discussion on possible scrutiny review 
items; finalising the scoping for the review; monitoring or interim reports; approval 
of the final report; and the response to the report.   
 

2. Conclusion
 

That consideration is given to the content of this report.
 
3. Consultation 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

a)  Policy Proofing Actions Required 

No policy proofing is required for this report. 
 

 

4. Appendices 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee Work 
Programme 

Appendix B Children's Services Forward Plan 

 

5. Background Papers 
 

No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
 
This report was written by Tracy Johnson, Senior Scrutiny Officer, who can be 
contacted on 01522 552164 or Tracy.Johnson@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 

Page 106

mailto:Tracy.Johnson@lincolnshire.gov.uk


APPENDIX A

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Theme: “That every child, in every part of the county should achieve their potential”

Chairman: Councillor John Hough
Vice Chairman: Councillor Ray Wootten

15 July 2016
Item Contributor Purpose
National Dispersal of 
Unaccompanied Asylum 
Seeking Children

Yvonne Shearwood
Quality and Standards 
Manager

Pre-Decision Scrutiny 
(Executive Decision TBC)

Developing a Model for 
the Charging of LCC 
Services to Schools

James Sharples
Change Manager, 
Performance and 
Programmes 

Miriam Binsztok
Senior Commissioning 
Officer

Status Report 

Corporate Parenting Panel 
Update

Cllr David Brailsford
Chairman of the Panel

Member Report

Early years services future 
model & commissioning 
plan and existing 
agreement with LCHS for 
children's health services

Charlotte Gray
Team Manager Children's 
Commissioning

Pre-Decision Scrutiny 
(Executive Councillor 
Decision on 29 July 2016) 

Lincolnshire Safeguarding 
Boards Scrutiny Sub-
Group Update

Cllr Ron Oxby
Chairman of the Sub 
Group

Member Report

9 September 2016
Item Contributor Purpose
Post 16 Strategic Priorities 
and Area Based Review

Maggie Freeman
14 – 19 Commissioner

Pre-Decision Scrutiny 
(Executive Councillor 
decision TBC)

Open Select List for 
Placements

Amy Allcock
Commissioning Officer

Mark Rainey
Children's Commissioning 
Manager

Pre-Decision Scrutiny 
(Executive Councillor 
decision TBC)

Partners in Practice Debbie Barnes
Executive Director of 
Children's Services

Status Report

Lincolnshire Safeguarding 
Boards Scrutiny Sub-
Group Update

Cllr Ron Oxby
Chairman of the Sub 
Group

Member Report

Page 107



9 September 2016
Item Contributor Purpose
Centre for Public 
Scrutiny's Guide to 
Scrutinising Children's 
Safeguarding  
Arrangements  – Key 
Scrutiny Questions for 
Safeguarding – Questions 
5-7

Janice Spencer
Assistant Director – 
Children's (Safeguarding)

Performance Scrutiny

Theme Performance: 
Quarter 1

Sally Savage
Chief Commissioning 
Officer – Children's

Performance Scrutiny

21 October 2016
Item Contributor Purpose
Educational Excellence 
Everywhere

Heather Sandy
Chief Commissioner - 
Learning

Status Report

Sector Led Model for 
School Improvement – 
Update Report 

Heather Sandy
Chief Commissioner - 
Learning

Policy Development

Inclusive Lincolnshire 
Strategy – Six Monthly 
Update

Mary Meredith
Service Manager – 
Inclusion

Update Report

Corporate Parenting Panel 
Update

Cllr David Brailsford
Chairman of the Panel

Member Report

Children's health services 
future model and 
commissioning plan 
(EXEMPT)

Charlotte Gray
Team Manager Children's 
Commissioning

Pre-Decision Scrutiny 
(Executive Decision on 1 
November 2016)

Additional Item

25 November 2016
Item Contributor Purpose
Theme Performance: 
Quarter 2

Sally Savage
Chief Commissioning 
Officer – Children's

Performance Scrutiny

Lincolnshire Safeguarding 
Boards Scrutiny Sub-
Group Update

Cllr Ron Oxby
Chairman of the Sub 
Group

Member Report

Centre for Public 
Scrutiny's Guide to 
Scrutinising Children's 
Safeguarding  
Arrangements  – Key 
Scrutiny Questions for 
Safeguarding – Questions 
8, 9, 13, 14

Janice Spencer
Assistant Director – 
Children's (Safeguarding)

Performance Scrutiny

Additional Item

Page 108



25 November 2016
Item Contributor Purpose
Additional Item
Additional Item

20 January 2017
Item Contributor Purpose
Budget Proposals 2017/18 Debbie Barnes

Executive Director of 
Children's Services

Budget Scrutiny

Corporate Parenting Panel 
Update

Cllr David Brailsford
Chairman of the Panel

Member Report

Additional Item
Additional Item
Additional Item
Additional Item

10 March 2017
Item Contributor Purpose
Lincolnshire Local 
Authority School 
Performance 2015-16

Martin Smith
Children's Service 
Manager - School 
Standards

Performance Scrutiny

Theme Performance: 
Quarter 3

Sally Savage
Chief Commissioning 
Officer – Children's

Performance Scrutiny

Lincolnshire Safeguarding 
Boards Scrutiny Sub-
Group Update

Cllr Ron Oxby
Chairman of the Sub 
Group

Member Report

Centre for Public 
Scrutiny's Guide to 
Scrutinising Children's 
Safeguarding 
Arrangements Guide – 
Key Scrutiny Questions for 
Safeguarding – Questions 
18, 20, 21

Janice Spencer
Assistant Director – 
Children's (Safeguarding)

Performance Scrutiny

Partners in Practice 
Update

Debbie Barnes
Executive Director of 
Children's Services

Update Report

Additional Item

Page 109



Theme Outcomes

The Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee is aligned to the five principles set out 
in the Children and Young People’s Plan 2012-2015:  

1. Early Intervention and Prevention 
 Strong universal services, providing early action and intensive support to 

vulnerable children and young people. 

2. Safeguarding and Best Start in Life 
 Ensuring children are safe in every environment. 
 Encouraging community responsibility for safeguarding. 

3. Aspiration and Well Being 
 Ensuring all those working with children champion the importance of 

aspiration. 
 Develop self-esteem, self-belief and resilience in all children, young people 

and their families. 

4. Learning and Achievement 
 All children being the best that they can be. 
 Closing the gap between vulnerable groups and children living in 

disadvantaged communities. 

5. Best Use of Resources 
 Integrating delivery with a focus on outcomes, life chances and opportunities. 
 Effective use of resources to provide better services locally. 
 Empower communities, creating opportunities for them to engage. 

For more information about the work of this Committee please contact Tracy Johnson, 
Senior Scrutiny Officer, on 01522 552164 or by e-mail at 

tracy.johnson@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Page 110

mailto:tracy.johnson@lincolnshire.gov.uk


APPENDIX B
FORWARD PLAN OF DECISIONS RELATING TO CHILDREN’S SERVICES FROM 1 JULY 2016

DEC
REF

MATTERS
FOR DECISION

DATE OF
DECISION

DECISION
MAKER

PEOPLE/GROUPS
CONSULTED PRIOR 
TO DECISION

DOCUMENTS 
TO BE 
SUBMITTED
FOR 
DECISION

HOW TO COMMENT
ON THE DECISION 
BEFORE IT IS MADE 
AND THE DATE BY 
WHICH COMMENTS 
MUST BE RECEIVED

RESPONSIBLE 
PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER AND CHIEF 
OFFICER

KEY       
DECISION
YES/NO

  DIVISIONS 
AFFECTED

 I011798 
New! 

Unaccompanied 
Asylum Seeking 
Children - 
National UASC 
Transfer 
Protocol 
2016/2017 

20 July 
2016 

Executive 
Councillor: 
Adult Care, 
Health and 
Children's 
Services 

Children and Young 
People Scrutiny 
Committee 

Report Quality and Standards 
Manager Tel: 01522 554849 
Email: 
yvonne.shearwood@lincolnshi
re.gov.uk 

Executive Councillor: 
Adult Care, Health 
and Children's 
Services and 
Executive Director of 
Children's Services 

No All Divisions 

I011705 
New!

Early years 
services future 
model and 
commissioning 
plan and 
existing 
agreement with 
LCHS for 
Children's 
Health Services 

29 July 
2016 

Executive 
Councillor: 
Adult Care, 
Health and 
Children's 
Services 

Children's DMT; 
Informal Member 
Working Group; 
Children and Young 
People's Scrutiny 
Committee 

Report Commissioning and 
Development Officer Tel: 
01522 553783 Email: 
charlotte.gray@lincolnshire.go
v.uk 

Executive Councillor: 
Adult Care, Health 
and Children's 
Services and 
Executive Director of 
Children's Services 

Yes All Divisions 

I011790 
New! 

Children's health 
services future 
model and 
commissioning 
plan 

1 
November 
2016 

Executive Children's DMT; 
Informal Member 
Working Group; 
Children and Young 
People Scrutiny 
Committee 

Exempt Report Commissioning and 
Development Officer Tel: 
01522 553783 Email: 
charlotte.gray@lincolnshire.go
v.uk 

Executive Councillor: 
Adult Care, Health 
and Children's 
Services and 
Executive Director of 
Children's Services 

Yes All Divisions 

 

 

 

P
age 111



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 27 May 2016
	5 Developing a model for the charging of LCC services to schools
	School Charging Appendix A

	6 Corporate Parenting Panel Update
	Corporate Parenting Panel Update - App A minutes

	7 Early Years Services Model and Commissioning Plan and Contractual Arrangements for Children's Health Services
	Early Years Exec Cllr  Report
	Early Years Exec Cllr report - Appendix A -  Review Findings
	Early Years Exec Cllr report App B

	8 Lincolnshire Safeguarding Boards Scrutiny Sub-Group - Update
	Appendix A - Minutes of the meeting helkd on 6 April 2016

	9 Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee Work Programme
	Appendix A - Work Programme


